
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Performance and Resource Management Sub 
(Police) Committee 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy James Thomson (Chairman) 

Deputy Douglas Barrow (Ex-Officio Member) 
Nicholas Bensted-Smith 

Tijs Broeke 
Deputy Keith Bottomley 

Alderman Alison Gowman 
Kenneth Ludlam 
Caroline Mawhood 

Lucy Sandford (External Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: George Fraser 

 tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
george.fraser@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 1PM  

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording  

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 

 
Part 1 - Public Agenda 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
3. MINUTES 

 To agree the public minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2017. 

 
 For Decision 

 (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

4. OUTSTANDING REFERENCES 

 Report of the Town Clerk 
 

 For Information 

 (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

 a) Briefing Note - OR 9 - CoLP Policy Oversight Annual Update 2016-2017   
 

  Briefing note of the Head of Governance & Assurance, CoLP 

 
 For Decision 

 (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

 b) Briefing Note - OR 10, OR 12 - Performance Against Measures   
 

  Briefing Note of the Corporate Communications Director, CoLP. 
 

 For Information 

 (Pages 19 - 20) 

 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

 Report of the Chamberlain 

 
 For Information 

 (Pages 21 - 28) 
 

6. HMICFRS INSPECTION UPDATE 

 Report of the Commissioner of Police 
 

 For Information 

 (Pages 29 - 62) 
 

7. 1ST QUARTER PERFORMANCE AGAINST MEASURES SET OUT IN THE 
POLICING PLAN 2017-20 

 Report of the Commissioner of Police 
 



 

3 

 

 For Information 

 (Pages 63 - 106) 
 

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 

 
10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 MOTION - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that 

they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

 
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 

 
11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2017. 

 
 For Decision 

 (Pages 107 - 108) 
 

12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
For Decision 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
For Decision 



This page is intentionally left blank



PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SUB (POLICE) COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 30 May 2017  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Performance and Resource Management Sub 
(Police) Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 1.45 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy James Thomson (Chairman) 
Nicholas Bensted-Smith 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
 

Kenneth Ludlam 
Lucy Sandford (External Member) 
Deputy Keith Bottomley 
 

 
Officers: 
Paul Adams - City of London Police 

Jane Gyford - T/Commander, City of London Police 

Andrew Ricketts - City of London Police 

Hayley Williams - City of London Police 

Neil Davies - Town Clerk's Department 

George Fraser - Town Clerk's Department 

Charlotte Taffel - Town Clerk's Department 

Alex Orme - Town Clerk's Department 

Jeremy Mullins - Chamberlain 

Pat Stothard - Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

Caroline Al-Beyerty - Deputy Chamberlain 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Deputy Douglas Barrow and Caroline Mawhood. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The minutes of the last meeting to be amended to read “Professional Standards 
& Integrity Sub (Police) Committee” on page 5. (1) 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2017 be 
approved. 
 

4. ACTIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE  
The Sub-Committee received a report of the Town Clerk detailing a list of 
actions taken with relevance to the Sub-Committee since the last meeting. 
 
A Member gave feedback to the Sub-committee on Operation Mass attended 
on 3 May in Bishopsgate.  The Member explained that the event was very well 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



received and productive, providing opportunities to meet and discuss issues 
with members of the public, as well has gaining their useful feedback.  The 
Chairman encouraged Sub-Committee Members to take part in future exercises 
if they can. 
 
The Sub-Committee discussed the relevance of this particular report in 
conjunction with outstanding references, and all agreed that it created 
unnecessary duplication of information and was therefore redundant.  The 
Committee agreed to omit this from all future agendas for the Sub-Committee. 
(2) 
 
RESOLVED – that the report be noted. 
 

5. OUTSTANDING REFERENCES  
The Sub-Committee received a report of the Town Clerk detailing a list of 
Outstanding References from the last meeting. 
 
Item 3.  2nd Quarter Performance Against Measures  
A Member raised concern over the large cost of undertaking surveys, and that 
this might be a point for consideration for the Sub-Committee going forward. 
The Commissioner explained that a report for Information will be sent to the 
next meeting in September that explains the decision process undertaken on 
the various options.  
 
Item 4. HMIC Inspection Update 
The Commissioner updated the Sub-Committee on the action plan drawn up to 
address shortcomings in Crime Data. 
 
Item 8. 2nd Quarter Performance Against Measures 
The Commissioner explained to the Sub-Committee the Anti-Social Behaviour 
(ASB) reporting definitions and standards, and agreed to consider how best to 
present ASB data to Members on in the future. 
 
The Lead Member for ASB agreed to work with the Force to look into the 
guidelines surrounding ASB data (personal  nuisance, environmental) to see 
whether the data could be presented in a more useful format to aid Members 
understanding. (3) 
 
Item 23. One Safe City Programme  
The Commissioner explained that the Force undertakes desktop testing 
exercises regularly  which would include the JCCR, once it has been 
established where the JCCR will be located. In the meantime, there are 
adequate separate Business Continuity plans in place for the existing 
Command and Control Room and the CoLP/ CoL switchboard. 
 
RESOLVED – That the list of Outstanding References be noted and updated. 
 

6. 4TH QUARTER PERFORMANCE AGAINST MEASURES SET OUT IN THE 
POLICING PLAN 2016-19  

Page 2



The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner summarising 
performance against measures set out in the Policing Plan 2016-19 for the 
period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. 
 
The Chairman noted that the sub descriptors/ qualifiers within the appendix 
werer inconsistent with those used in the summary page. The Chairman 
requested that these be made consistent throughout the documentation. (4) 
 
Measure 2 - The percentage of those surveyed who are confident that the 
City of London is protected from terrorism 
A Member asked, with reference to the poor response rate, what the best 
course of action would be to ensure surveys are effective.  The Commissioner 
explained that they had suffered from survey fatigue, and were looking for ways 
to improve targeting using bespoke surveys with Corporate Communications, 
and an update report would be shared with the sub-committee in due course 
once it had been submitted for Decision at the Police Committee. 
 
A Member suggested that as the majority of the population of the City were only 
present between 9am-5pm, it is important to ensure that the correct audience 
were being targeted for these surveys. 
 
Measure 3 – The education and enforcement activities delivered to 
support the City of London Corporation’s casualty reduction target 
A Member posed a question relating to the statistics detailed within Measure 3 
that stated a return of 15 offences logged from 17 vehicle checks.  The Member 
asked whether or not this would suggest it appropriate to carry out a higher 
number of vehicle checks, given the high rate of offences identified.  The 
Commissioner explained that this high rate of return was due to the checks 
being targeted. 
 
Measure 4 – The number of disposals from manned enforcement 
activities 
A Member questioned the accuracy of the data within this dataset, given that 
they were aware of disposals within the Community Road Watch category that 
took place in March 2017, though this was documented as “0” within the report. 
Members sought assurance that data quality was maintained. The 
Commissioner noted that data was linked with that of Transport for London; and 
assurance would be requested to ensure the data presented was correct. (5) 
   
Measure 6 – The level of victim-based violent crime 
The Commissioner explained that a visible rise in Victim-Based Violent Crimes 
statistics was attributable in part to the inclusion of incidents in which victims 
are involved in initial altercations, such as security guards, despite being no 
consequent injury. Such incidents have to be recorded within this assessment 
which plays a role in the rising numbers.  
 
Measure 7 - The level of victim-based acquisitive crime 
A Member noted that, in reference to the associated table within Appendix A - 
Performance Summary, the trend should be “Deteriorating” rather than “Stable” 
or “Stable/Negative”.  The Member declared that this data needed to be 

Page 3



consistently aligned.  A Member suggested that it might be useful to include 
PMG ratings within the Appendices for these reports.  The Commissioner 
agreed to resolve the discrepancies within the report. 
 
A Member noted that the most recent figure recorded, for March 2017, was the 
highest rate to date.  The Commissioner explained various issues with 
premises involved not having working CCTV in operation during 
incidents/CCTV installed in the right places, and emphasised the need to 
promote responsibility amongst property owners in this regard. A Member 
suggested that appropriate levels of CCTV should be included be taken into 
consideration when granting licences for new premises in the City. (6) 
 
The Commissioner also explained that steps are being taken to develop 
offender profiling to address these incidents. 
 
Measure 9 – The level of Anti-Social Behaviour Incidents 
The Commissioner explained that ASB reporting had changed to comply with 
correct reporting standards, and this is reflected by increases since September 
2016.  The Commissioner also explained that reporting was predominantly 
done by security guards and third parties, rather than City residents. The 
Commissioner noted that the collection of ASB data should improve when the 
new Crime and Intelligence reporting system goes live.. 
 
A Member questioned where the data was to support the assertion that ASB 
levels remain low in the City compared to surrounding Boroughs. The 
Commissioner commented that any comparison with the surrounding MPS 
boroughs would not be particularly useful owing to the very different 
demographic, but added from their own experience and perspective of working 
in the MPS, the volumes experienced in the City are low. 
 
Measure 10 – The percentage of victims of fraud investigated by the 
Economic Crime Directorate who are satisfied with the service provided 
A Member commented that this data looked to be positive. 
 
Measure 13 – The attrition rate of crimes reported to Action Fraud 
A Member requested the Commissioner to ensure the reporting data was 
correct due the discrepancies between the figures of complaints against 
reports, and crimes reported under measure 14. A note would be sent to the 
Member in order to clarify the figures presented.(7) 
 
Measure 17 – The level of satisfaction of victims of crime with the service 
provided by the City of London Police 
A Member asked for detail on the number of responses compared to the total 
number of victims. The Commissioner explained that the survey carried out into 
the level of satisfaction of victims was ineffective, and that they had seen 
negligible change in the results since last year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

7. HMIC UPDATE REPORT  

Page 4



The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner on HMIC 
Inspections. 
 
The Commissioner updated the Sub-Committee on activity undertaken since 
the last meeting with reference to HMIC inspection reports.  The Commissioner 
explained that there had been significant focus on Skills Capability to determine 
what skills gaps exist.  Role profiles have been listed, though they are waiting 
on the work of the Demand and Value for Money  review to be completed in two 
weeks‟ time, on 16th June.  A Member asked for assurances that the 
conclusions of the review  would be implemented into the strategic workforce 
plan. The Commissioner explained that due consideration would be given to the 
findings of the review and any accepted proposals  would be included in 
relevant force plans and strategies, including the STRA process. 
 
The Commissioner explained that the STRA process aimed to take into account 
what operational leads needed in terms of demand level, predicted demand 
level and services within each directorate.  Following this, documents were 
produced and a strategic assessment made.  The STRA report made 21 
recommendations and was deemed to be very effective in identifying 
operational and strategic requirements.  This will happen on an annual basis 
going forward.  The next report would take place in August, pending the 
completion of the Demand and Value for Money review .  The Sub-Committee 
agreed that the findings of the Demand and Value for Money review  should go 
to Grand Committee with a view to formulating a deep dive group to focus on it. 
 
The Commissioner gave a verbal update on the HMIC‟s PEEL: Police 
Effectiveness 2016 report.  The Commissioner explained that the results were 
due to go through a process of regional and national moderation as is normal 
practice.  A Member declared that due to the lengthy delay in receiving the 
reports, it was very useful to obtain regular updates so that the Sub-Committee 
is kept up to date. 
 
A Member questioned various areas that are categorised as RED status within 
the table of recommendations.  The Commissioner explained that in a number 
of cases GREEN status is pending quality assurance checks to be signed off 
within CoLP, such as Legitimacy No.1,4, and a number are pending completion 
of the Demand and Value for Money review, such as Efficiency No.2,3,4,5.  
Members also requested that estimated completion dates are given for all RED 
status recommendations in the next and future updates. 
 
A Member expressed concern at the RED status of one of the 
recommendations within the Inspection update on “In harm‟s Way- the role of 
the police in keeping children safe”.   A Member asked that future reports 
include a forecast for future status changes (for example in 3/6/9 months‟ time) 
in order to provide more useful information in the table. (8) 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

8. CITY OF LONDON POLICE POLICY OVERSIGHT ANNUAL UPDATE 2016-
2017  

Page 5



The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner providing an update 
on Force Policies and Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). 
 
The Commissioner explained that the number of documents requiring review 
was reduced to 42, and this was a relatively low number.  The Commissioner 
explained that many of these documents were marked as requiring review only 
due to a process of scheduling reviews automatically, and that it did not mean 
that the Authorised Professional Practice or SOP was out of date.  The Chair 
requested an update report be produced for the next meeting that highlighted 
which areas had turned RED within the last period (9) 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

9. HUMAN RESOURCES MONITORING INFORMATION 1ST APRIL 2016 - 
31ST MARCH 2017  
The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police on Human 
Resources Monitoring from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. 
 
A Member requested that further information on resignations be included in the 
next update; particularly with regard to those who resigned after serving for a 
short period of time as these often point to critical issues that require 
addressing.  The Commissioner noted that this information was required but 
was not in a position to agree to the request until he could check back in force 
what data was collected by HR. (11) 
 
The Chairman noted that recruitment remained a challenge, and asked the 
Force to look into the areas that are under-resourced and the methods being 
used to fill vacancies. It was also noted that the Force needed to continue to 
look into planning for the impact of highly experienced officers (30 years‟ 
service) leaving the Force. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 

10. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT  
The Sub-Committee received a report of the Chamberlain providing an update 
on the work of Internal Audit that has been undertaken on the CoLP since 
February 2017. There were two outstanding audits to be completed by 30 June. 
There were also four outstanding recommendations (three amber and one red), 
of which three were noted as „completed‟ although this had yet to be 
triangulated by Internal Audit. 
 
A Member noted the issue of fuel cards had been mentioned at the last meeting 
of the Audit and Risk Committee. This related to a carryover issue in 2015/16 
which had now been completed. 
 
The Project Management audit was soon to be completed and a report would 
be coming to the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

Page 6



11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no urgent business. 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

14. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 
2017 be approved. 
 

15. ONE SAFE CITY PROGRAMME - REQUEST FOR FUNDING  
The Sub-Committee received a joint report of the Town Clerk and 
Commissioner detailing a funding request for June committees to cover the 
three month period from July to end of September for the One Safe City 
Programme that now falls within the domain of the City of London Police. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

16. ONE SAFE CITY REPORT ON ACHIEVEMENTS AND RESOURCES  
The Sub-Committee received a joint report of the Town Clerk, Chamberlain and 
Commissioner providing information on the One Safe City Programme. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

17. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no non-public questions. 
 

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no non-public urgent business. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.55 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 

Page 7



 
Contact Officer: George Fraser 
 tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
george.fraser@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 8



 

 

PEFORMANCE AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SUB (POLICE) COMMITTEE 
26 SEPTEMBER 2017 

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES 
 

No. 
 

Meeting Date &  
Reference  

Action  Owner Status 

1.  30/05/17 
Item 3 - 
Minutes 23/02/17 
 
Typo 

The minutes of the last meeting to be amended to 
read “Professional Standards & Integrity Sub (Police) 
Committee” 

Town Clerk COMPLETE 

2.  30/05/17 
Item 4 - 
Actions taken since the last 
meeting of the sub-committee 

Town Clerk to remove this default item from all future 
agendas. 

Town Clerk COMPLETE 

3.  30/05/17 
Item 5 - 
Outstanding References 
 
Guidelines of ASB data 

A Member agreed to look into the guidelines 
surrounding ASB data (personal vs. environmental) to 
see whether the data could be made more user-
friendly and useful. 

Lucy Sandford ONGOING -  
 
Paul Adams of COLP 
made contact with 
Lucy Sandford by e-
mail on 3rd August 
and awaits contact. 

4.  30/05/17 
Item 6 - 
4th Quarter Performance 
Against Measures Set Out in 
the Policing Plan 2016-19 
 
Data inconsistencies 

The Chairman noted that the assessment of measures 
within the appendix was inconsistent with the 
summary page.  The Chairman requested that the 
data be made consistent throughout all 
documentation. 

CoLP COMPLETE -  
 
this has now been 
rectified and also the 
reporting criteria 
used for this Sub 
Committee is now the 
same as that which is 
used for PMG 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



 

 

‘Satisfactory’, ‘Close 
Monitoring’ or 
‘Requires action’, for 
consistency 
purposes. 

5.  30/05/17 
Item 6 - 
4th Quarter Performance 
Against Measures Set Out in 
the Policing Plan 2016-19 
 
Data quality assurance from 
TfL 

A Member questioned the accuracy of the data within 
this dataset, given that they were aware of disposals 
within the Community Road Watch category that took 
place in March 2017, though this was documented as 
“0” within the report. Members sought assurance that 
data quality was maintained. The Commissioner noted 
that data was linked with that of Transport for London; 
and assurance would be requested to ensure the data 
presented was correct. 

CoLP COMPLETE -  
 
Update sent to 
Member on 04/09/17. 

6.  30/05/17 
Item 6 - 
4th Quarter Performance 
Against Measures set out in 
the Policing Plan 2016-19 
 
Licensee responsibility for 
CCTV. 

A Member suggested that appropriate levels of CCTV 
should be taken into consideration when granting 
licences for new premises in the City of London. 
 
CoLP to discuss with Licensing Committee 

Licensing 
Committee 

COMPLETE -  
 
Update as follows. 
Levels of CCTV are 
taken into 
consideration when 
granting licenses in 
the City of London. It 
is the Licensing 
Authority which 
grants licenses. There 
are mandatory 
conditions which 
premises must accept 
and the remainder are 
achieved through 
negotiation or a 
hearing, failing 
successful 
negotiation. A hearing 

P
age 10



 

 

will only be 
successful if a 
position is supported 
by solid evidence. 
The Licensing 
Committee is not 
always supportive to 
some extent, to 
CoLPs efforts to 
achieve certain 
conditions with the 
grant of any premises 
licence. CoLP always 
seek a standard CCTV 
condition, prepared 
on advice of City 
solicitors on behalf of 
the Licensing 
Authority. CoLP also 
generally seek a ‘no 
promoted events’ 
condition which is 
again not always 
supported by the 
Licensing Committee. 
Indeed, there appears 
to be a view by the 
Licensing Committee 
that new licensees 
should not routinely 
accept the CCTV 
condition. 
 
Most solicitors whilst 
preparing licence 

P
age 11



 

 

applications will now 
routinely include the 
condition to 
demonstrate support 
for the ‘Licensing 
Objectives’ contained 
within the 2003 Act. 

7.  30/05/17 
Item 6 - 
4th Quarter Performance 
Against Measures set out in 
the Policing Plan 2016-19 
 
Clarification on figures used. 

A note to be sent to Deputy Keith Bottomley in order 
to clarify the figures used in Item 6 - 4th Quarter 
Performance Against Measures set out in the Policing 
Plan 2016-19. 

CoLP COMPLETE -  
 
A note regarding this 
which related to 
measure 13, was sent 
to the Member in 
August 2017. 

8.  30/05/17 
Item 7 - 
HMIC Update Report 
 
Forecasting status changes 

Commissioner to provide some degree of forecasting 
future status changes within HMIC Update reports. 

CoLP COMPLETE -  
 
The Force has 
provided forecast 
dates where it is 
feasible to do so for 
those areas where 
status is ‘RED’ and 
overdue. 

9.  30/05/17 
Item 8 - 
CoLP Policy Oversight 
Annual Update 2016-2017 
 
Newly RED status indicator 

The Commissioner explained that many of these 
documents were marked as requiring review only due 
to a process of scheduling reviews automatically. 
 
Commissioner to provide separate reporting indicator 
in future for all measures turning RED within the last 
period. 

CoLP COMPLETE -  
 
This will be 
incorporated into the 
next annual policy 
update to the Sub in 
2018. A Briefing note 
on Policies turning 
red in the last 
reporting period is 

P
age 12



 

 

attached to the ORs. 

10.  30/11/16  
Item 7 
2nd Quarter Performance 
Against Measures set out in the 
Policing Plan 2016-19 

 
23/02/17 
Item 3 
Minutes – Matters Arising 

The Sub-Committee sought an update at a future 
meeting from the Commissioner exploring approaches 
to collating survey data and for those showing 
satisfaction to be asked to complete a more detailed 
survey. 

Police COMPLETE -  
 
A briefing note update 
is attached to the 
ORs. 

11.  30/05/17 
Item 9 
Human Resources Monitoring 
Information 1st April 2016 – 31st 
March 2017 

A Member requested that further information on 
resignations be included in the next update; 
particularly with regard to those who resigned after 
serving for a short period of time as these often point 
to critical issues that require addressing. 
 
The Commissioner would check back in Force to see 
what data was collected by HR. 

Police ONGOING -  
 
The HR Director has 
been notified that this 
data is required. This 
is being scoped to 
see if this is possible. 
The next HR 
Monitoring update is 
due in November. 

12.  23/02/17 
Item 5 
3rd Quarter Performance Against 
Measures 

 

The Commissioner noted that a complete re-vamp 
and review of the survey methodology had been 
taking place and would circulate a note to the Sub-
Committee. 

Police COMPLETE -  
 
A briefing note is 
attached to the ORs. 

13.  23/02/17 
Item 15 
Workforce Plan 

The Commissioner would report back on the staffing 
budgets for the period 2017-20. 

Police and 
Chamberlain 

COMPLETE -  
 
A budget monitoring 
update was submitted 
to the Police 
Committee on the 21st 
September. 

P
age 13



 

 

14.  23/02/17 
Item 16 
One Safe City Programme 
Review of Year 

The Chairman recommended that the One Safe City 
Working Party & Project Sub review the impact of the 
One Safe City Programme in 2016-17 in delivering 
service improvements & efficiencies and consider the 
next steps regarding funding  in 2017-18. 

Town Clerk/ 
Chamberlain 

ONGOING -  
 
Draft report enclosed in 
agenda. Reports going 
to Committee for 
decision in June 2017. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 14



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Response to Outstanding Reference 9 from the May Police Performance and Resource 
Management Sub Committee 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. The Police Performance and Resource Management Sub Committee was presented with an 

update on the status of Force policy at their May 2017 meeting. This was as a result of the 
Chairman for 2016-17, Deputy Doug Barrow, requesting an annual update on policies at a 
previous meeting where it was agreed that the annual update would be presented every Spring 
meeting of this Sub Committee and report on the year end position. 
  

1.2. The May Performance and Resource Management Sub Committee was chaired by the new 
Chairman of this Sub Committee, Deputy James Thomson and as a result of discussion at the 
meeting the following OR was raised. 
 
OR no: Meeting date and reference Action 

9. 30/05/17 
Item 8 - 
CoLP Policy Oversight Annual Update 
2016-2017 
 
Newly RED status indicator 
 

The Commissioner explained that many of these 
documents were marked as requiring review only 
due to a process of scheduling reviews 
automatically. 
 
Commissioner to provide separate reporting 
indicator in future for all measures turning RED 
within the last period. 

 
1.3   As Policy Review is not an actual measure in the Force Plan and does not appear in every 

performance update to the Sub Committee or as an agenda item (as it was agreed to provide an 
annual update on policy review), it is not possible to provide a separate reporting indicator as 
such on this issue. 

1.4 The below table illustrates the position as reported to your Sub Committee in May- this was the 
end of year position in March 2017. 

 
Directorate Total Number 

of policies & 
procedures 

Number 
within 
date 

Number 
requiring 

review 
(current gap) 

Trend Risk 
Assessment 

BSD 79 59 20  

Yellow - 7 

Amber - 9 

Red - 4 

CRIME 39 37 2  

Yellow - 0 

Amber - 1 

Red - 1 

ECD 3 1 2  

Yellow - 1 

Amber - 1 

Red - 0 

I&I 31 26 5  

Yellow - 2 

Amber – 2 

Red - 1 

UPD 63 49 13  

Yellow - 4 

Amber - 5 

Red - 4 

Total 215 172 42  

Yellow - 14 

Amber - 18 

Red - 10 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4a



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
 

 

2. Current Position 
2.1. However, this briefing note provides as requested an update on the current position of Force 

policy and procedure documents as reported for the 1st quarter 2017/18 to the Force 
Performance Management Group and those that are now shown as RED. 
 

2.2. The current position for Force Policy documents reported for the end of Q1 June 2017 is 
summarised in the table below: 
 

Directorate Total Number 
of policies & 
procedures 

Number 
within 
date 

Number 
requiring 

review 
(current gap) 

Trend Risk 
Assessment 

BSD 81 54 27  

Yellow - 13 

Amber - 9 

Red - 5 

CRIME 39 39 0 - 

Yellow - 0 

Amber - 0 

Red - 0 

ECD 3 1 2  

Yellow - 1 

Amber - 1 

Red - 0 

I&I 30 29 1  

Yellow - 0 

Amber – 1 

Red - 0 

UPD 67 57 9  

Yellow - 5 

Amber - 3 

Red - 1 

Total 220 180 39  

Yellow - 19 

Amber - 14 

Red - 6 

 
2.3 Since end of March 2017 to End of Q1 June 2017 the total number of policies assessed as RED 

has reduced from 10 to 6 and in the last month has reduced further to 4. (See below for detail) 
 
2.4 Member are reminded that the Policy and procedure documents are not graded as RED for 

being overdue for review, but are graded as a red risk for review if it is deemed that the Force is 
at risk of the following by not having an up to date policy in place- could be open to litigation if 
relevant policy area is not providing sufficient guidance to staff. Major operational impact if 
consistent process not followed. Governance implications could lead to financial vulnerability if 
standard process not followed. 

 
2.5 The current RED graded policies are listed as follows: 
 

SOP Directorate 
Date of last 

review 

Date of 
next 

review 

Expected 
publication 

date 

Risk 
Assessme

nt 

Accident 
Management 

BSD Feb-12 Feb-15 N/K RED 

First Aid Training BSD Dec-14 Dec-16 N/K RED 

Page 16



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

HR – Recruitment BSD Jun-14 Jun-16 Jul-17 RED 

Personal 
Protective 
Equipment 

BSD May-11 May-14 Oct-17 RED 

PSD - Force 
Vetting 

BSD Sep-15 May-17 N/K RED 

Armed Policing - 
Security Escorts 

UPD Feb-16 Feb-17 N/K RED 

 
2.6 Since this list was submitted to the Force PMG in July the Recruitment and Security Escort 

Policies have been updated and published.  Leaving only 4 policies from this list currently being 
reviewed, with their current position listed below for reference.  

 

SOP Directorate 
Date of last 

review 

Date of 
next 

review 

Risk 
Assessment 

 

Accident Management BSD Feb-12 Feb-15 RED 

Update 
The SOP has been rewritten and is awaiting approval by the 

Force H&S Committee 
 

First Aid Training BSD Dec-14 Dec-16 RED 

Update The sop is awaiting approval before publication. 

 

Personal Protective 
Equipment 

BSD May-11 May-14 RED 

Update 
The SOP is being reviewed and planned for formal approval 

at the September Force Health & Safety Board 
 

PSD - Force Vetting BSD Sep-15 May-17 RED 

Update 
Awaiting information from Directorates to complete the 

review 

 
2.7 Policies are continually reviewed by owners and the position of the Force database is reported 

monthly to the Force PMG for oversight to which the Chairman of Performance and Resource 
Management Sub Committee is invited. 
  

3 Conclusion 
 

3.1 PMG are also notified of policies that will soon require review with owners receiving 3 month’s 
notice from Strategic Development as part of the paper submission. 

 
 
 

Paul Adams 
Head of Governance & Assurance 

City of London Police 
Ext 2593 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



  

 
 
 
 

 

Briefing Note: For Members of the Performance and Resource 

Management Sub Committee n response to OR No 10 (30/11/16) and 

OR No 12 (23/02/17) 
 
 
Background 

 
1. This note is in response to two Outstanding References from this Sub Committee. The first 

OR (no 10) from the Sub Committee meeting on the 30th November 2016: 

 The Sub-Committee sought an update at a future meeting from the Commissioner exploring 
approaches to collating survey data and for those showing satisfaction to be asked to 
complete a more detailed survey 
and the second OR (NO 12) from the Sub Committee meeting on the 23rd February 2017: 

 The Commissioner noted that a complete re-vamp and review of the survey methodology 
had been taking place and would circulate a note to the Sub-Committee. 
 

2. These both related to queries raised by Members regarding the use of Surveys as a means of 
gauging effectiveness as it was noted that the number of responses was diminishing thereby 
calling into question the value of the results. The Commissioner tasked the CoLP Corporate 
Communications Director (CCD) to review the Force’s approach to using surveys and make 
recommendations for further action as appropriate. 

 
3. The CCD duly undertook a review of this area of business and submitted a report to the Force 

Strategic Management Board (SMB) in July 2017. This update is based on that report and is 
for Members information. 
 
Context to the Review 
 

4. Within the Force historically and to date, quantitative feedback from the public  on how the 
Force has performed and to identify community views have been gathered via free survey 
tools (Survey Monkey and Mailchimp). Until late 2016, officers and staff had access to the 
tool and were able to construct and issue surveys as they deemed necessary, with no point 
of central co-ordination. 
  

5. Over 2016, responses received to surveys published decreased significantly, with the last 
survey on Security receiving only four responses.  This was a good indicator that the 
frequency the Force was surveying had led to survey fatigue amongst our audience and we 
had exhausted all good will that may have existed in relation to providing feedback. In 
addition, some surveys were repetitious and some questions were poorly constructed and/ 
or misconstrued by audience groups resulting in the survey results being less valuable as an 
indicator of good performance or satisfaction.    
 
Current Position 
 

6. It was clear that there was an over-reliance on free internet-based surveys which has led to 
degradation in the data they provide. As a result it was agreed Corporate Communications 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4b



  

would review how quantitative surveys were conducted and until a viable solution was 
identified, the force Survey Monkey account would only be accessed by Corporate 
Communications. 
 

7. The review included consulting and considering options that the City of London Corporation 
Economic Development Office (EDO) had already explored. The EDO had previously engaged 
extensively in surveying stakeholders within the City both quantitatively and qualitatively. 
This activity has been suspended although a broad City survey may be re-instated in the 
future.  
 

8. Using the recommendations provided by the EDO, a number of research companies were 
approached to establish if they could offer a comprehensive and cost effective solution that 
would meet the needs of the Force.  
 

9. Available solutions range from the in-depth with face-to-face interviews (more qualitative in 
nature), to the internet-based (quantitative) that are significantly cheaper.   
 

 All agencies approached mentioned defining a research group that only covered those who 
live or work in the City would be an issue, although it was suggested this could be overcome 
by partnering with other agencies and utilising their candidates.  

 Prices ranged from £22,000 to £4,200 per survey. 

 Whatever solution we select, the ability to use our own channels and networks will be 
incorporated and different approaches will be examined such as the layered approach of 
giving those surveyed the chance to opt out or opt in to complete a fuller survey 

 
Options to be explored 

 
10. If an agency is to be appointed, a full procurement process would need to be undertaken. 

(The Corporate Communications Director has advised that due to delays with getting the 
procurement process underway, it may be necessary to use Survey Monkey one more time 
this year for the customer service survey). 
 

11. The Force will look to exploring opportunities to work with City of London Corporation 
Teams in order to reduce costs. 
 

12. Alternative methods of measuring feedback outside of the survey mechanism will also be 
explored in more depth, such as social media sentiment analysis.  
 
Conclusion 
 

13. The Force recognises that feedback from the public is a valuable but also recognises that the 
traditional methods may not be the best. The Forces Strategic Management Board accepted 
a recommendation from the CCD that management of all future surveys be managed 
centrally within the Force Corporate Communications Dept. This will ensure consistency of 
questioning, and reduce survey frequency. In the meantime opportunities to combine 
survey needs will be further explored. 
 

Teresa La Thangue 
Corporate Communications Director 
X2290 

 

Page 20



 

 

Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Performance and Resources Sub (Police) Committee  26th September 2017 

Subject: 
Internal Audit Update Report 

Public 
 

Report of: 
The Chamberlain 

For Information 
 

Report author: 
Pat Stothard, Head of Audit and Risk Management 
Jeremy Mullins, Audit Manager 

 
Summary 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an update on the work of 
Internal Audit that has been undertaken for the City of London Police (CoLP) since 
the last report in May 2017.  
 
Work is completed to a minimum of draft report stage on the 2016-17 planned 
internal audit work and it is anticipated that all audits will be completed by 29th 
September 2017. There were seven full assurance audits included in the original 
plan: five audits (CoLP Community Consultation; CoLP Policies and Procedures; the 
Economic Crime Academy; SKYNet Grants Audit Verification; and Governance 
Framework and Performance Measures) have all been completed. The remaining 
two planned audits: Police Budget Monitoring, and Income Streams and Income 
Generation, have been completed to draft report stage and will be finalised by the 
end of September 2017. The completion of the two remaining audits: Police Budget 
Monitoring; and Income Streams and Income Collection have been delayed. This is 
due limited Police staff availability to meet with the audit staff within anticipated 
timescales. 
 
An unplanned audit requested by the Commissioner to determine how two former 
civilian staff members were paid after they had resigned has been completed to draft 
report stage and will also be finalised by the end of September 2017.  
 
As previously agreed with your Committee, where findings and recommendations 
from corporate-wide audit reviews impact on the City Police details will be reported 
at the next committee meeting. There are ten planned corporate audits for 2017-18, 
and five of these have been completed to draft report stage to date. 
 
Work is progressing on the Internal Audit Plan for 2017-18. There were eight full 
assurance audits planned for the financial year 2017-18. Two 2017-18 audits have 
been completed to draft report stage: Police Project Management and Police Seized 
goods. Fieldwork is progressing on two further audits: Police Bank Accounts 
(Defendants Funds) and Demand and Events Policing.  It has been necessary to 
defer two of these audits: IT Technology Refresh Project and Action Fraud. A further 
audit of IT Network Security has been deleted. Discussions are on-going with 
Management to identify other audit work that can be undertaken in order to utilise the 
existing audit resources.  
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to: 
 

 Note the report. 
Main Report 

 
Internal Audit Plan 2016-17 

 
1. There were seven full assurance audits included in the original plan: five audits 

(CoLP Community Consultation; CoLP Policies and Procedures; the Economic 
Crime Academy; SKYNet Grants Audit Verification; and Governance Framework 
and Performance Measures) have all been completed. The remaining two 
planned audits: Police Budget Monitoring, and Income Streams and Income 
Generation, have been completed to draft report stage and will be finalised by the 
end of September 2017. An unplanned audit requested by the Commissioner to 
determine how two former civilian staff members were paid after they had 
resigned has been completed to draft report stage and will also be finalised by 
the end of September 2017. Details of these audits and progress against the 
2016-17 Internal Audit Plan are contained in Appendix 1. 
 

2. The completion of the two remaining audits: Police Budget Monitoring; and 
Income Streams and Income Collection have been delayed. This is due limited 
Police staff availability to meet with the audit staff within anticipated timescales. 

 
Internal Audit Planned Work 2017-18 
 
3. Work is progressing on the Internal Audit Plan for 2017-18. There were eight full 

assurance audits planned for the financial year 2017-18. Two 2017-18 audits 
have been completed to draft report stage: Police Project Management and 
Police Seized goods. Fieldwork is progressing on two further audits: Police Bank 
Accounts (Defendants Funds) and Demand and Events Policing. Details of all 
these audits and progress against the 2017-18 Internal Audit Plan are contained 
in Appendix 2. 

 
4. It has been necessary to defer three of these audits: IT Network Security; IT 

Technology Refresh Project; and Action Fraud.  
 
Deferred and Deleted Audits 

 
5. IT Network Security – Discussion with the Director of IT has confirmed that the 

intended scope of this audit has been primarily covered in the IT Network 
Infrastructure (SekChek) audit completed in May 2017.  The outcome of this audit 
is provided below and the recommendations are currently being addressed by the 
City of London Corporation. A summary of the outcome of this corporate review 
has been included below (paragraph 8) for your information. 
 

6. IT Technology Refresh Project – discussion with the Director of IT has 
established that due to the implementation timetable of this project, it will be more 
appropriate for this audit to be undertaken as part of the 2018-19 Audit Plan. 

Page 22



 

 

 
7. Action Fraud – the fraud reporting and data capture system is currently being 

delivered via an extended existing contract. The City of London Police and 
Corporate Procurement are currently working with IBM, who have been 
contracted to provide an improved fit for purpose Action Fraud service. Due to the 
interim arrangements in place and ongoing negotiations on service delivery, it is 
deemed too early to undertake an audit in this area and the audit has, therefore, 
been deferred to 2018-19. 

 
8. Discussions are on-going with the City of London Police to identify other audit 

work that can be undertaken in order to utilise the existing audit resources. 
 

City of London IT Network Infrastructure (Corporate Review 2016-17) 
 
9. The key findings are as follows: 
 

 Overall, the use of security controls is in line with those applied to other Active 
Directory domains used in the Government sector.  

 System Wide Domain Security Settings – An effective password policy has 
been established and applied. However, two amber recommendations were 
raised in this area to improve the effectiveness of the intruder alert lockout 
policy settings and to rename the default system administration account.  

 Audit Policy Settings – As little use is currently being made of the audit policy 
settings and alerts two amber recommendations were raised to help address 
this. 

 Event Log Settings - System event log settings currently overwrite event 
records as needed, which means that log records are not archived. An amber 
recommendation was therefore raised to improve accountability by addressing 
the risk that potentially important entries will be overwritten and lost.  

 Security Options – No significant risk issues were identified in the examination 
of the security option settings although one green recommendation was 
raised to” warn but allow” the installation of uncertified device drivers rather 
than to simply allow them to “silently succeed”. 

 User Accounts – 8,010 accounts exist of which 43.6% are disabled Two green 
recommendations were raised in this area to review the inconsistencies found 
in the use of home directories, logon scripts and profiles to resolve the single 
end user account for which no password is required.  

 Rights and Privileges – While rights and privileges are well defined and 
applied one amber recommendation was raised in this area to support the 
current management initiative to review administrator rights and privileges.  

 Trusts and Remote Access Services – No trust relationships were found to 
exist with any other domains and while no Windows Remote Access Service 
(RAS) servers were identified, excluding disabled accounts,  428 (5.3%) of 
users have permission to dial-in via RAS including 7 administrator accounts. 
An amber recommendation has been raised to address this as RAS 
passwords are transmitted in clear text. 

 Services and Drivers – No issues were identified following the detailed 
examination of the 383 services and drivers installed in the domain.  

Page 23



 

 

 Updates and Patches – The latest Windows service pack was found installed 
on the Network Windows AD server and 177 Security Patch updates were 
applied to the DC server when it was first installed in 2015. However, no 
security updates have been applied since then and a red recommendation 
was raised to address this.  

 Discretionary Access Control Lists (DACLs) - No issues were identified 
following the examination of the 96,110 DACLs defined on the domain.  

 Logical Drivers and Network Shares – No issues were identified as the 
domain server access is protected by the use of secure (NTFS) drives.  

 Backup and Restore Arrangements - No assurance can currently be provided 
in this area as no evidence was provided in response to the audit request for 
information at the time of the audit. 

 
 
Conclusions 

 
10. The 2016-17 Internal Audit plan is scheduled for completion to draft report stage 

for remaining audits by 29th September 2017. 
 
11. Work is progressing on the 2017-18 Internal Audit plan and two audits have been 

completed to draft report stage. Fieldwork is progressing on two further audits. 
 

12. It has been necessary to delete one audit and defer two further audits from the 
2017-18 Audit Plan. Discussions are on-going with the City Police to identify audit 
areas to utilise the resources available. 

 
 

Appendices 
 

 Appendix 1 - Schedule of Internal Audit Planned Work 2016-17 

 Appendix 2 - Schedule of Internal Audit Planned Work 2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 

Pat Stothard, Head of Audit and Risk Management 
T: 07796 315078 E: pat.stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Jeremy Mullins, Audit Manager 
T: 020 7332 1279 E: jeremy.mullins@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 24

mailto:pat.stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:jeremy.mullins@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
City Police - Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2016-17 
 

Full Reviews    Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 
Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Standard Operating Procedures 
 
The Force’s process of ensuring that 
SOPs remain relevant and are reviewed 
and updated as necessary will be 
examined. 
 

 
 

15 

 
 

22nd September 
2016 

(Actual) 

 
 

Completed 

 
 

0 

 
 

1 

 
 

5 

 
 

6 

Budget Monitoring 
 
The City Police’s monitoring processes 
for ensuring that the overall budget is 
managed during the year. 
 

 
 

20 

 
 

29th September 
2017 

 
 

Draft Report 

    

Economic Crime Academy 
 
The financial performance of the 
Academy will be examined, together with 
the viability of the service comparing 
costs to income. 
 

 
 

5 

 
 

9th November 
2016 

(Actual) 

 
 

Completed 

 
 

0 

 
 

5 

 
 

1 

 
 

6 

Community Consultation 
 
The process for community consultation 
for input to the policing priorities will be 
reviewed. 

 
 

5 
 

 
 

22nd August 
2016 

 (Actual) 

 
 

Completed 

 
 

0 

 
 

1 

 
 

0 

 
 

1 

P
age 25



Full Reviews    Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 
Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Grants Audit 
 
The Force’s compliance with grant terms 
and conditions will be undertaken for 
certification purposes as and when 
requested. 

 
 

5 

 
 

31st March  
2017 

(Actual) 

 
 

Completed 

 
 

Green 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

Governance Framework and 
Performance Measures 
 
The Force’s governance framework will 
be reviewed for effectiveness 
 
A sample of reported measures will also 
be compared for accuracy to supporting 
documentation. 

 
 
 

15 

 
 
 

28th April 
2017 

(Actual) 

 
 
 

Completed 

 
 
 

Amber 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

2 

 
 
 

1 

Income Streams and Generation 
 
The Force’s approach to increasing 
sources of income and new streams will 
be examined. 

 
 

20 

 
 

29th September 
2017 

 
 

Draft Report 

    

Salary Overpayments 
 
This audit was requested by the 
Commissioner in order to determine why 
two former members of the Force’s 
civilian staff were paid after leaving. 

 
 

10 

 
 

29th September 
2017 

 
 

Draft Report 

    

 
 

P
age 26



Appendix 2 
City Police - Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2017-18 
 

Full Reviews    Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 
Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Project Management 
 
This review has been requested by the 
Town Clerk and will assess compliance 
with the City’s project approval gateway 
process. 

 
 

15 

 
 

29th September 
2017 

 
 

Draft Report 

    

Action Fraud Procurement Process  
This audit will examine the procurement 
process for the team and contract 
monitoring arrangements 

 
10 

 
 

 
Deferred 

    

Demand Policing and Event Resourcing  
The purpose of this audit is to examine 
the budget setting and monitoring 
arrangements for ad-hoc non-core 
policing activities. 
 

 
5 

 
13th October 

2017 

 
Fieldwork 

    

Police Business Continuity Planning  
The audit will focus on the arrangements 
in place to review, revise and test the 
CoLP Business Continuity plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10 

 
31st December 

2017 

 
Not Started 

    

P
age 27



Full Reviews    Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 
Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Police Bank Accounts (Defendant’s 
Funds  
An audit exercise to ascertain the 
adequacy of controls over the 
management of defendants funds. 
 

 
15 

 
30th November 

2017 

 
Fieldwork 

    

Police Seized Goods  
An audit exercise to ascertain the 
adequacy of controls over the recording 
and secure storage of seized goods. 
 

 
15 

 
29th September 

2017 

 
Draft Report 

    

IT Network Security  
The audit will focus on the integrity of the 
IT network security arrangements. 
 

 
10 

 
- 

 
Deleted 

    

IT Technology Refresh Project  
This audit will determine the adequacy of 
governance of the IT Refresh Project and 
consider adherence to timescales and 
the delivery of milestones. 
 

 
10 

 
- 

 
Deferred 

    

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28



Committee: Date: 

Police: Performance and Resource Management Sub 
Committee 

26th September 2017 

Subject:  
HMICFRS Inspection Update 

Public 

Report of: 
Commissioner of Police 
Pol 61/17 

For Information 
 

 
SUMMARY  

Please note that since the last update, in July HMIC extended its remit to include 
inspection of fire and rescue services in England and so has changed its name to 
HM Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS), this 
reference will be used in this and all future reports. 
This report provides Members with an overview of activity undertaken within the last 
reporting period, to your May Sub Committee in response to reports published by 
HMICFRS.  Progress against existing outstanding recommendations and new 
recommendations received is provided for Members’ information (Appendix A) as 
well as an overview of the Inspection programme.  
 
Reports published 
Force Reports -No reports published in the last reporting period. 
 
National Reports -HM Crown Prosecution Service Inspectorate (HMCPSI) and 
HMICFRS National Report – Making it fair - A joint inspection of the disclosure 
of unused material in volume Crown Court cases – July ’17 (5 
recommendations applicable to  City of London Police). 
HMCPSI and HMICFRS National Report - Living in fear – the police and CPS 
response to harassment and stalking (4 recommendations  applicable to City of 
London Police but these await direction and an action plan from the NPCC 
Lead) 
 
Inspections Completed Since Last Report -No inspections have been 
completed within the force during the last reporting period.   
 
Inspections Due During Next Period- HMICFRS PEEL Effectiveness 
Inspection – Week commencing 6th November 2017 with an anticipated 
duration of three days. 
Rolling unannounced inspection programmes that could take place in the next 
reporting period are: Custody; Crime Data Integrity; Child Protection. 

 
Reports Due for Publication -An HMICFRS thematic inspection report on 
Modern Slavery (the policing response to implementation of the Modern 
Slavery Act 2015) is due imminently.   
HMICFRS PEEL Efficiency & Legitimacy Inspection Report (national and force) 
are expected in October ’17, although this has not been announced by 
HMICFRS.  
A national and force report for an assessment of progress made in respect of 
improving the capability and capacity for mitigating the Abuse of Position for 
Sexual Purposes is due to be published in early Autumn 2017 and will be 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



separate and additional to PEEL Legitimacy reports.   
 
HMIC Recommendations Overview 
This report details progress against the recommendations from all live inspection 
action plans and these are summarised in the table below and fully within Appendix 
A.  HMICFRS did not set deadlines for many of these recommendations, so the 
force has set itself some challenging targets to drive forward and deliver 
improvements.  There are currently 24 outstanding recommendations, a decrease of 
13 from the 37 outstanding recommendations reported in May ‘17. As requested at 
your last Sub Committee, where possible, where a recommendation is shown as 
RED as it has passed its due date, a projected date for finalisation has been 
included in the update in the Appendix where feasible. 

Report Number of open recommendations and 
status 

HM Crown Prosecution Service 
Inspectorate (HMCPSI) and HMICFRS 
National Report – Making it fair (July 
’17) 

NEW - 5 Amber 

HMCPSI and HMICFRS National Report 
- Living in fear (July ’17) 

NEW - 4 White 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2016 – 
National 

2 - NEW Green 
1 - NEW White 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2016 –  
CoLP  

6 - NEW Green 
7 - Amber 

Best Use of Stop & Search Scheme 
Revisit 

3 - Reds 

PEEL: Police Leadership 2016 - CoLP 1  - NEW Green - COMPLETE 
1 - Green  

PEEL: Police Legitimacy 2016 – 
National  

1 - NEW Green 
1 - Amber 

PEEL: Police Legitimacy 2016 - CoLP 1 - Amber 
2 - Reds 

PEEL: Police Efficiency 2016 – CoLP 4 - NEW Green 
1 - Red 

The tri-service review of joint 
emergency services interoperability 
principles 

2 Reds 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2015 – 
CoLP 

1 - NEW Green - COMPLETE 
 

PEEL: Police Efficiency 2015 - CoLP 1 - Red 

In harm’s way: The role of the police in 
keeping children safe 

1 - Red  
 

Recommendation Summary Number 

NEW Green 16 (+ 1 Green)  

Amber 9 

Red 10 

White 5 

Total Amber/Red/White 
Recommendations 

24 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Members are asked to receive and note the contents of this report. 

 
 
 

Page 30



Main Report 

 
1. This report provides Members with an overview of the City of London 

Police response to HM Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 
Services (HMICFRS) continuing programme of inspections and published 
reports.  Since the last report to your Sub Committee there have been two 
new reports published that impact on the Force.  Progress with existing 
recommendations as well as detail of the current inspection programme is 
provided below for your reference. 

 
NEW REPORTS 
 

HM Crown Prosecution Service Inspectorate (HMCPSI) and 
HMICFRS National Report – Making it fair - A joint inspection of 
the disclosure of unused material in volume Crown Court cases 
– July ’17 

 
2. Making it fair - A joint inspection of the disclosure of unused material in 

volume Crown Court cases identified a number of aspects of concern in 
the way Crown Court trials are handled by the prosecution and how police 
and the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) effectively manage unused 
material relating to ‘volume’ casework. 
 

3. This national report made 9 recommendations in total of which 5 are 
applicable to the Force.  These recommendations have been drafted into 
an action plan by Strategic Development and the Head of the 
Administration of Justice Unit has been nominated as the plan owner for 
delivery. 

 
4. The first recommendation requires the force and CPS to correctly identify 

disclosure issues relating to unused material at the charging stage. 
 

5. The second relevant recommendation requires the force to improve the 
supervision of case files, with regard to the handling of unused material. 

 
6. The third recommendation requires the force to have a dedicated 

disclosure champion with sufficient seniority to ensure they are able to 
work closely with the CPS Area Disclosure Champions. 

 
7. The fourth recommendation requires the force within a 12 month period to 

review digital case management systems to ensure all digital unused 
material is stored within one central location on the CPS system and one 
disclosure recording document is available to prosecutors in the same 
location. 

 
8. The fifth recommendation requires the force within a six month period to 

establish effective communication channels between the force and CPS. 
 

9. Full details of all the recommendations actions are contained within 
Appendix A.  

Page 31



HMICFRS & HMCPSI National Report – Living in fear – the police and 
CPS response to harassment and stalking – July ‘17 

 
10. This is the first time that HMICFRS and HMCPSI have inspected and 

reported on the police service’s and Crown Prosecution Service’s 
approach to tacking crimes of harassment and stalking. 

 
11. The report is seen as a catalyst for change and improvements that will 

lead to improved services to victims and acknowledges the fact that in 
some cases victims’ lives will depend on this change.  

 
12. The national report makes 22 recommendations of which four are 

applicable to the force.  However, the force awaits direction from the 
NPCC Lead who has taken responsibility nationally to set a timetable and 
develop a joint action plan with the CPS.  In the meantime the force has 
taken a proactive approach and ensured that the lead responsible officer 
from public protection is aware of the recommendations whilst the NPCC 
takes action.  
 

INSPECTIONS UNDERTAKEN SINCE LAST REPORT 
 
13. No inspections have been completed within the force during the last 

reporting period. 
 
14. In June ‘17 HMICFRS undertook a crime file review that forms part of the 

2017 HMICFRS PEEL effectiveness inspection.  In July ’17 the main data 
and document returns were submitted to support the main PEEL 
Effectiveness inspection, which has now been confirmed for week 
commencing Monday 6th November 2017 and is expected to last 
approximately three days.   

 

15. HMICFRS have indicated that they will now be taking a more risk based 
approach to the next PEEL Inspection and under this approach a force 
may not be assessed against one or more of the five core questions that 
make up the overall effectiveness assessment.  For forces which are not 
reassessed on a particular question, judgements will be ‘carried over’ form 
the previous year.  For 2017 City of London Police will be assessed 
against 4 of the core question sets with the question set relating to 
effectiveness of investigating crime and reducing re-offending being 
excluded for which a judgement grading of Good was received in 2016.  .   

 

INSPECTIONS DUE DURING NEXT PERIOD 
 
16. HMICFRS PEEL Effectiveness Inspection is scheduled for week 

commencing 6th November 2017 with an anticipated duration of three 
days.  
 

17. Rolling unannounced inspection programmes that could take place in the 
next period are:Custody;Crime Data Integrity; Child Protection. 

 

Page 32



CURRENT STATUS OF HMIC RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

18. There were 12 HMICFRS reports being managed by the Force during the 
reporting period of which 2 have now been completed with 2 new reports 
recently added.  The current status of recommendations is summarised in 
the table below with full details contained in Appendix A. 
 

19. HMICFRS have not set deadlines for many of these recommendations, so 
the force has set itself some challenging targets to drive forward and 
deliver improvements. There are currently 24 outstanding 
recommendations, a decrease of 13 from the 37 outstanding 
recommendations reported in May ‘17. 

 
Current Status of HMIC Recommendations Summary 

 

Recommendation Summary Number 

New Green 16 (+1 Green) 

Amber 9 

Red 10 

White 5 

Total Amber/Red/White 
Recommendations 

24 

 
Appendix A: Full list of HMIC Recommendations currently being implemented 
within Force.  
 
Contact: 
Andrew Ricketts 
Strategic Development - T: 020 7601 8296 
E: Andrew.Ricketts@cityoflondon.pnn.police.uk  
 
 

Page 33

mailto:Andrew.Ricketts@cityoflondon.pnn.police.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Appendix A – POL 61-17 

HMICFRS Report Recommendations 
 

Traffic Light Colour Definition of target achievement 

GREEN The recommendation is implemented 

AMBER The recommendation is subject to ongoing work and monitoring but is anticipated will be implemented 

RED The recommendation is beyond designated deadline or cannot / will not be implemented (rationale required) or 

WHITE The recommendation is not CoLP responsibility to deliver or is dependent upon another organisation delivering a product. 

 

Making it fair - A joint inspection of the disclosure of unused material in volume crown 
court cases 
A joint national report by HMCPSi and HMICFRS 
Published July 2017 
 
There are 9 recommendations; 5 of which apply to force, these are to be progressed. 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 
Immediately, police and CPS must correctly identify all 
disclosure issues relating to unused material at the charging 
stage and this must be reflected fully in an action plan 

AMBER Immediate 
A draft action plan is currently under review, task owners and deadlines 
are being assigned. 

2 

Within six months the CPS should comply with the Attorney 
General’s Guidelines on Disclosure requirement and ensure 
that every defence statement is reviewed by the allocated 
prosecutor prior to sending to the police and that prompt 
guidance is given to the police on what further actions should 
be taken or material provided 

WHITE 
January 

2018 
This action is for the CPS 

P
age 35



2 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

3 

Within 12 months the College of Policing should produce 
guidance on training that is of sufficient depth to enable police 
forces to provide effective training on the disclosure of unused 
material to all staff involved in the investigation process. The 
guidance, which may best be served by the use of classroom 
based or a similar form of interactive training, should 
concentrate on ensuring that staff fully understand their 
responsibilities in relation to the revelation of both sensitive 
and non-sensitive material and how to schedule material  
correctly 

WHITE July 2018 This action is for the College of Policing 

4 

Within six months police forces should improve their 
supervision of case files, with regard to the handling of unused 
material. This process should be supported by the requirement 
for supervisors to sign the Disclosure Officer’s Report each 
time this is completed 

AMBER 
January 

2018 
A draft action plan is currently under review, task owners and deadlines 
are being assigned. 

5 

Within six months, the CPS Compliance and Assurance Team 
should commence six monthly disclosure dip samples of 
volume Crown Court files from each CPS Area, with the 
findings included in the CPS Area Quarterly Performance 
Review process 

WHITE 
January 

2018 
This action is for the CPS. 

6 

Within six months, all police forces should establish the role of 
dedicated disclosure champion and ensure that the role holder 
is of sufficient seniority to ensure they are able to work closely 
with the CPS Area Disclosure Champions using the existing 
meetings structure to ensure that disclosure failures are closely 
monitored and good practice promulgated on a regular basis 

AMBER 
January 

2018 
A draft action plan is currently under review, task owners and deadlines 
are being assigned. 

7 

Within six months the CPS should provide a system of 
information sharing between the Areas and Headquarters that 
enables the effective analysis of Area performance on 
disclosure 

WHITE 
January 

2018 
This action is for the CPS. 

P
age 36



3 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

8 

Within 12 months, the police and the CPS should review their 
respective digital case management systems to ensure all 
digital unused material provided by the police to the CPS is 
stored within one central location on the CPS system and one 
disclosure recording document is available to prosecutors in 
the same location 

AMBER July 2018 

A draft action plan is currently under review, task owners and deadlines 
are being assigned. 

9 

Within six months, the CPS and police should develop effective 
communication processes that enable officers in charge of 
investigations and the allocated prosecutor to resolve unused 
material disclosure issues in a timely and effective manner 

AMBER 
January 

2018 

 
Living in fear - the police and CPS response to harassment and stalking 
A joint national report by HMCPSi and HMIC 
Published July 2017 
 
There are 22 recommendations; 4 of which apply to force. 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 

The Home Office should undertake a review of the Protection 
from Harassment Act 1997 with particular reference to: 

 including a provision for harassment causing serious 
distress to bring this into line with the stalking 
provisions; and 

 defining stalking more clearly. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the Home Office 

P
age 37



4 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

2 

The Home Office should change the Home Office Counting 
Rules for recorded crime to ensure that harassment crimes are 
recorded in preference to any other crimes (in particular 
malicious communications) when it is obvious that there has 
been a ‘course of conduct’. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the Home Office 

3 

 
The Home Office should introduce protection orders for 
harassment crimes.  
 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the Home Office 

4 

The National Police Chiefs’ Council lead should ensure that the 
risks to victims of harassment and stalking are properly 
assessed by: 

 commissioning work to develop an evidence-based 
approach to risk assessment in harassment and 
stalking crimes; 

 advising forces that until the above review has been 
completed, forces should use a domestic abuse, 
stalking, harassment and honour-based violence risk 
identification, assessment and management model (or 
equivalent) for all harassment and stalking crimes as 
an interim measure. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the National Police Chiefs’ Council 

5 

The National Police Chiefs’ Council lead should ensure that the 
risks to victims of harassment and stalking are properly 
managed by: 

 ensuring that any commissioned work to develop an 
evidence-based approach to risk assessment in 
harassment and stalking crimes also considers whether 
a risk management plan should be included with any 
risk assessment tool. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the National Police Chiefs’ Council 

P
age 38



5 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

6 
The National Police Chiefs’ Council lead and the CPS policy lead 
for harassment and stalking should review the national stalking 
protocol and re-issue it to forces and CPS Areas. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the National Police Chiefs’ Council and the CPS policy 
lead for harassment. 

7 

 
The National Police Chiefs’ Council and CPS stalking leads 
should review the stalking single point of contact system and 
ensure that this is:  

 fully effective; and  

 operating consistently for victims in all areas.  
 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS 

This action is for the National Police Chiefs’ Council and the CPS policy 
lead for harassment. 

8 
Chief constables should stop the use of Police Information 
Notices and their equivalents immediately. 

WHITE Immediate 

NPCC lead for Stalking & Harassment has advised he will be writing to 
all Chief Constables to set out the timetable and proposals for interim 
actions from the Inspection. 
 
There will be a joint CPS & Police action plan which is currently being 
drafted and will be issued from the NPCC lead. In addition, forces will 
also be given some direction on Recommendation 8 where the HMIC 
are requesting all forces to remove the use of police information 
notices. In the meantime, the NPCC lead is supporting current guidance 
on the use of PINS. 
 
Status is held at WHITE until the receipt of the joint action plan above 
from the national lead. 

9 

Chief constables should ensure that officers are aware of, and 
use appropriately, the powers of entry and search for stalking. 
Chief constables should also ensure that adequate records of 
these searches are compiled for audit and compliance 
purposes. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS  - 

force to 
determine 

its own 
deadlines 

10 

Chief constables should work with criminal justice partners to 
identify what programmes are available to manage offenders 
convicted of harassment and stalking offences in their 
respective force areas. In the absence of such programmes, 
they should review whether interventions could and should be 
established. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS  - 

force to 
determine 

P
age 39



6 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

its own 
deadlines 

11 
Chief constables and CPS Area leads should monitor and 
ensure compliance with the national stalking protocol. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMICFRS  - 

force to 
determine 

its own 
deadlines 

12 

The College of Policing should consider how to raise awareness 
of the differences between harassment and stalking, including 
how to ensure that these crimes are correctly recorded. As 
part of this review, we propose that the training provided to 
force crime registrars incorporates a specific module on 
harassment and stalking. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing, but the Force Crime Registrar 
has noted. 

13 

The College of Policing, when compiling revised harassment 
and stalking Authorised Professional Practice should include 
improved guidance to officers on crime prevention advice for 
victims, particularly about online offending. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing 

14 

The College of Policing, when revising the harassment and 
stalking Authorised Professional Practice, should highlight the 
complexities and risks associated with harassment and stalking 
offences and advise forces to consider these as part of the 
crime allocation process. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing 

P
age 40



7 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

15 

The College of Policing, when compiling revised stalking 
Authorised Professional Practice, should include the use of 
data on the power of search in stalking cases as best practice in 
audit and performance arrangements. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing 

16 
The College of Policing should consider the contents of this 
report and publish the new harassment and stalking 
Authorised Professional Practice as a matter of urgency. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing 

17 

The College of Policing and the CPS should work together and 
respectively revise the summary of evidence form to ensure a 
consistent and appropriate response to such applications, and 
provide clear guidance on the application for restraining 
orders. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the College of Policing and Crown Prosecution Service 

18 
The CPS should reinforce and reiterate guidance to prosecutors 
on accepting pleas to harassment instead of pursuing stalking 
charges. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the Crown Prosecution Service 

19 
The CPS should introduce a process into scrutiny panels to 
examine harassment and stalking cases on a regular basis. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the Crown Prosecution Service 

20 
The CPS should improve the process whereby lessons learned 
can be passed between CPS Direct and CPS Areas. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the Crown Prosecution Service 

P
age 41



8 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

21 

The CPS should consider the contents of this report, and the 
College of Policing Authorised Professional Practice when 
published, and thereafter review the current CPS legal 
guidance. 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the Crown Prosecution Service 

22 

 
The CPS should ensure that all prosecutors have received 
training about harassment and stalking.  
 

WHITE 

No 
deadline 

set by 
HMIC 

This action is for the Crown Prosecution Service 

 

 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2016 
A National report by HMIC 
Published March 2017 
 
There are 5 recommendations; 3 of which applied to the force. 2 are complete and 1 is now deemed white because London does not have a ROCU. 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

3 

Cause of concern  
HMIC found that there is an unacceptable and poorly-
understood variation in the extent to which forces assign to 
investigations the outcome type (see annex for further details): 
‘Evidential difficulties: victim does not support police action’.  
Recommendation 3  
Each force that has assigned to appreciably high levels of 
investigations (when compared with other forces) the outcome 
type (Cleveland Police, Kent Police, Hampshire Constabulary, 
Humberside Police, Warwickshire Police and West Mercia 
Police) ‘Evidential difficulties: victim does not support police 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[Internal 
deadline] 

This action does not directly apply to the City of London Police however 
the force has completed a review examining outcomes of this type and 
a report submitted to the Directorate Head Crime for consideration – 
no issues of concern were raised. 

P
age 42



9 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

action’ should:  

 by 1 May 2017, produce and submit to HMIC an action 
plan that sets out: how it will undertake a 
comprehensive analysis of the use of this outcome 
type across the force area in order fully to understand 
why it is an outlier; how it will review the extent to 
which the force’s use of this outcome type is 
appropriate; and, as is likely, the steps that it will take 
to improve its service to victims by reducing the extent 
to which investigations are assigned to this outcome 
type;  

 immediately thereafter put that action plan into effect; 
and  

 by 30 June 2017, submit to HMIC a report on the 
results of the comprehensive analysis of the use of this 
outcome type.  

By September 2017, the Home Office, working with the 
National Police Chiefs’ Council and police forces, should 
determine whether any further guidance should be issued 
regarding the use of this outcome type or whether more 
significant changes are required to the outcomes framework, 
and if necessary issue further guidance in this respect to forces 
as soon as practicable thereafter.  
 

4 

Cause of concern 
HMIC found that in many forces there is a material lack of 
focus, grip and effective activity directed to apprehending 
wanted suspects. There are too often inconsistencies and 
weaknesses in how rapidly forces circulate information about 

NEW 
GREEN 

Immediate 

A review of warrants has been conducted and the SOP is to be revised 
post the implementation of the NICHE system, November 2017. 
 
Performance oversight has been enhanced; the new Victim Code and 
Crime Standards Working Group as a standing item ‘Outstanding 

P
age 43



10 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

wanted suspects on the Police National Computer (PNC), and 
too often inadequate efforts are made to apprehend these 
individuals once the information has been circulated. 
 
Recommendation 4 

 Immediately, all forces should review their current 
procedures for apprehending wanted suspects, assess 
the number of wanted suspects on the PNC and those 
whose details have yet to be circulated on the PNC, 
and take prompt and effective action to apprehend 
those suspects. 

 By September 2017, the National Police Chiefs’ Council 
(NPCC) should develop clear guidance for forces on 
the requirements and process for entering the details 
of suspects on the Police National Computer and the 
reasonable steps forces should take to apprehend 
those wanted individuals once their details have been 
circulated. The NPCC should work closely with forces 
to develop this guidance. 

 In its PEEL effectiveness inspection 2017, HMIC will 
test forces’ readiness to comply with the established 
approach. 

wanted / missing’. 
 

5 

Causes of concern 
HMIC found that the current approach to mapping organised 
crime groups is applied by forces in an unacceptably 
inconsistent way, giving an incomplete and inaccurate picture 
of the national threat. Given the severity and nature of 
organised crime, a more coherent and consistent approach is 
critical. 
Recommendation 5 

 Immediately, the responsibility for mapping organised 

NEW 
WHITE 

Immediate 

London does not have a ROCU and there is no regional mapping 
capability therefore force is therefore unable to comply with the letter 
of this recommendation. 
 
However, the force does report direct to the national team as a result 
of serious and organised crime responsibilities, specifically Economic 
Crime. 

 

P
age 44



11 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

crime groups should be transferred from individual 
police forces to regional organised crime units, and this 
transfer should be completed no later than September 
2017. 

 By September 2017, in order to improve the 
consistency of organised crime group mapping, the 
National Crime Agency should lead a comprehensive 
review of the suitability of the current mapping 
approach for assessing and tackling the broad range of 
threats posed by serious and organised criminality 
(including organised crime groups, urban street gangs 
and other criminal networks) and, if necessary, issue 
guidance on a revised national approach as soon as 
practicable thereafter. 

 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2016 
A Force report by HMIC 
Published March 2017 
 
There are a total of 13 actions for the force.  6 are complete and 7 in progress 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force should improve its approach to collecting and 
analysing intelligence – including intelligence from its main 
partner organisations – to provide a detailed understanding of 
its communities.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

It is anticipated that the forces use of the Niche system from November 
2017 will enhance capability in this area. 
The force has embedded a senior analyst with the City of London 
Corporation 3 days per week working alongside the Community Safety 
Partnership. This to develop existing relationships and secure access to 
data and intelligence.  
 
The submission of intelligence has doubled since the time of inspection. 

P
age 45



12 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

2 

Areas for improvement 
The force should adopt a structured and consistent problem-
solving process to enable it to tackle crime and anti-social 
behaviour more effectively.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

The force has a structured problem solving process with the adoption of 
the SARA model within its monthly Tactical Tasking Coordination Group 
[TTCG]. These documents are reviewed at each TTCG to understand 
where each Plan Owner is with each of their SARA’s. It is furthered 
supported by the use of 4P plans to enhance the delivery against each 
of the designated force priorities. 
 

3 

Areas for improvement 
The force should ensure that there is regular and active 
supervision of investigations to improve quality and progress.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

 
Each crime is assessed by a Detective Sergeant prior to allocation to 
ensure that each crime is allocated appropriately. Each supervisor is 
required to ensure that crimes allocated to their teams are subject to a 
periodic review, and direction added to the crime. This is subject to 
force audit and undertaken monthly by the Crime Management Unit 
who send an exception report to managers to ensure updates and 
reviews are undertaken. 
The new monthly victim code and crime standards working group 
monitors performance in this area to ensure timely review and 
expeditious investigation. 

4 

Areas for improvement 
The force should ensure that its integrated offender 
management programme is implemented consistently across 
all areas.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

 
Joint guidance has been produced by the MPS and CoLP and published 
in May 2017, this to unpin the already signed joint Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 
Daily checks are performed on all processed through CoLP custody to 
establish if they met the criteria for acceptance into Integrated 
Offender Management [IOM]. Details of offenders already accepted 
onto MPS IOM are provided as briefing documents to CoLP uniform 
officers. 
 
A City IOM panel has been established although at this time there are 
no City resident offenders to manage through this process. The force is 

P
age 46



13 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

represented on the Pan London IOM Board. 
Additional proposals to assist the MPS to manage their IOM offenders 
who also cause harm within the City have been agreed by the force. 

5 

Areas for improvement 
The force should improve the identification of the vulnerability 
of victims during investigations, by ensuring staff complete the 
necessary processes on the crime reporting system. 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

Training and guidance has been issued, the results of which have been 
reviewed. 
Within the crime system the flagging of vulnerable victims has 
improved and there has been an increased awareness of vulnerability 
demonstrated by an increase in adults and children coming to police 
notice reports. 

6 

Areas for improvement 
The force should reassure itself that in relation to the use of 
victim personal statements it is fully compliant with its duties 
under the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime. 

NEW 
GREEN 

Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

The Crime Management Unit has instigated a dip sample to ensure 
compliance with victim code. The results of the dip sample are included 
in the Crime Directorate Performance Dashboard which is reviewed at 
Performance Management Group quarterly. 

7 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force should enhance its ability to gather and use 
intelligence from a range of sources to develop its 
understanding of serious and organised crime.  
 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

The force has engaged with Durham, Merseyside and Essex to 
understand the SOC process in other forces. There has been a process 
of engagement with officers and staff to increase awareness and this 
has resulted in an increase in the number of intelligence reports 
submitted. A senior CoLP analyst has been seconded to the City of 
London to harvest partner intelligence. There is a much better 
understanding and use of GAIN.   
There is continuing activity being undertaken across the whole 
functional response to SOC including peer review, workshops (planned 
for Sept 17) and process and output reviews which will direct further 
activities to deliver recommendations 7 - 12.   
 

8 

 
Areas for improvement  
The force should ensure that it maps all organised crime 
groups promptly following identification.  

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

An exercise has recently been undertaken by I & I to map OCGs 
currently targeted by the force. A new Directorate governance process 
has been introduced to ensure senior level oversight. 
 

P
age 47



14 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

9 

 
Areas for improvement  
The force should ensure that it prioritises activity aimed at 
tackling organised crime groups effectively in order to protect 
communities from harm.  
 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

The force uses a strategic threat assessment process and MoRiLE, which 
also considers NCA strategic assessments. New Directorate (SOC) 
oversight boards introduced will prioritise operational activity in-line 
with an OCG’s threat/ harm score (as opposed to the Tier).  

10 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force should improve its understanding, across the 
government’s national 4P framework, of the impact of its 
activity against serious and organised crime, and ensure that it 
learns from experience to maximise the force’s disruptive 
effect on this activity 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

Operational Debriefs are mandated and new SOC processes are having 

an impact. However, complete compliance for production of 4P plans 

for all Organised Crime Groups has not yet been achieved.  There are 

also indications that resourcing issues may limit the capability/ capacity 

of departments to respond.   

 

11 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force should enhance its approach to the lifetime 
management of organised criminals to minimise the risk they 
pose to local communities. This approach should include 
routine consideration of ancillary orders, partner organisation 
powers and other tools to deter organised criminals from 
continuing to offend.  
 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

A position paper has been agreed by the force’s NPCC team (June 2017) 

that will see the creation of dedicated PREVENT officers. PREVENT 

officers will have responsibility for the lifetime management of high-

harm OCG members. 

 

12 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force should improve its understanding of the impact of its 
activity on serious and organised crime and ensure that it 
learns from experience to maximise the force’s disruptive 
effect on this activity.  
 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

Operational debriefs are now mandated.  Update re Rec 10 also informs 

 

P
age 48



15 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

13 

 
Areas for improvement 
The force needs to test its own vulnerability to significant cyber 
attack.  
 

AMBER 
Sept 17 
[internal 
deadline] 

Regular penetration testing is now being conducted as part of the 

force’s cyber PROTECT/ PREVENT plan. The first formal PREPARE 

exercise will take place on the 6th September with a second scheduled 

for 2018 (to focus on CoLP’s Action Fraud/ NFIB responsibilities).  

 
 
 

Best Use of Stop and Search Scheme revisit 2016 
A Force report by HMIC 
Published February 2017 
 
HMIC reported that following a revisit in November 2016 they found that the force was compliant with the Best Use of Stop and Search scheme having previously failed on 2 
requirements. 
 
HMIC further advised that the force’s monitoring and analysis could be further enhanced and these suggestions have been accepted and are reported below. 
 
Total of 3 actions: relevant to the City of London Police and in progress.  

 
 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

Areas for Enhancement 
Enhance monitoring data on: 

1 the reason for searches (e.g. drugs) by ethnicity and age RED 
April 2017 
[internal 
deadline] 

  
The force has accepted HMICs suggested enhancements but has 
determined that there are issues in producing this data efficiently at the 

P
age 49



16 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

2 
the rate at which the item searched for is found, by ethnicity 
and age 

RED 

 
 

current time utilising existing systems. 
 
With the introduction of Niche [November 2017] this situation is 
expected to improve and the force will seek to address at this time. 
 

 3 
Individual officer/team data – totals, outcomes and find rate, 
by ethnicity and age. 

RED 

 

PEEL: Police Leadership 2016 
A Force report by HMIC 
Published [online only] December 2016 
 
2 actions are relevant to the City of London Police and are complete.  

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 

Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should evaluate its leadership 
programme and talent management schemes to ensure a 
structured, comprehensive and transparent approach so it can 
identify and develop potential leaders. 

GREEN 

March 
2017 

[internal 
deadline] 

Leadership Programme 
An evaluation report for the Leadership programme was presented to 
the May 2017 Force Change Board.  

Talent Management 
The talent development strategy has been signed off and a delivery 
plan produced. 

 

P
age 50



17 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

2 

Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should introduce a way of identifying and 
developing talented officers and staff in a consistent way 
across the workforce, making sure that the available schemes 
are communicated effectively. 

NEW 
GREEN 

March 
2017 

[Internal 
deadline] 

 

PEEL: Police Legitimacy 2016 – National 
A National report by HMIC 
Published December 2016 
 
Total of 3 actions are relevant to the City of London Police, 2 are complete and 1 is in progress. 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 

Cause of concern 
HMIC is concerned that some forces are failing to comply with 
current national vetting policy. This means that these forces 
are employing individuals who have not undergone even basic 
vetting checks, which represents a significant risk to the 
integrity of the organisation. 
 
Recommendation 
To address this cause of concern, HMIC recommends that: 

 Within six months, all forces not already complying 
with current national vetting policy should have 
started to implement a sufficient plan to do so. 

 

 Within two years, all members of the police workforce 
should have received at least the lowest level of 
vetting clearance for their roles. 

GREEN June 2017 

Within 6 months 
 
The Head of Professional Standards confirms that current national 
vetting standards are being complied with. 
 
New national guidelines were expected in 2017 but their publication 
has been delayed with no new timescales announced. 
  
The Professional Standards Control Strategy has been produced and 
vetting is fully referenced in it. 
 

AMBER 
 

December 
2018 

 

Within 2 years 
Vetting clearance is already embedded within recruitment processes. 
Steps are being taken ensure appropriate vetting levels are maintained 
for officers and staff transferring roles within force. Currently a 
directory of roles requiring enhanced vetting is being complied. 
 

P
age 51



18 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

3 

Cause of concern 
HMIC is concerned that some police counter corruption units 
do not have the capability or capacity to seek intelligence on 
potential abuse of authority for sexual gain.  This means that 
forces are not able to intervene early to safeguard potential 
victims and tackle unacceptable behaviour and potentially 
corrupt behaviour. 
 
Recommendation 
To address this cause of concern HMIC recommends that: 

 Within 6 months all forces should have started to 
implement a plan to achieve the capability and 
capacity required to seek intelligence on potential 
abuse of authority for sexual gain.  These plans should 
include consideration of the technology and resources 
required to monitor IT systems activity and to build 
relationships with the individuals and organisations 
that support vulnerable people. 
 

NEW 
GREEN 

June 17 

The force has already launched (Feb 17) ‘Bad Apple’ – two way 
confidential reporting which supports this.  A regular ‘Professionalism’ 
newsletter has been launched by the Assistant Commissioner in May 
2017. 
 
A force Action Plan to address the issue of Police Officers and Staff who 
abuse their position for a sexual purpose or to pursue an improper 
emotional relationship based on national guidance has been developed.  
Delivery is monitored by the Vulnerability Working Group with Chief 
Officer oversight via the Vulnerability Steering Group.  The plan includes 
activities around Prevention, Intelligence, Enforcement, Engagement 
and Governance.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



19 
V31.3 

PEEL: Police Legitimacy 2016 - CoLP 
A Force report by HMIC 
Published December 2016 
 
Total of 5 actions: 0 are national and outside the remit of City of London Police. 

5 are relevant to the City of London Police, 3are in progress (with an element of 1 now closed) and 2 are complete 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 
Areas for improvement 
The force should improve how it demonstrates that it has 
taken action to improve how it treats all the people it serves. 

NEW 
CLOSED 

April 2017 

Professional Standards implemented a questionnaire as part of the post 
complaint procedure to establish feedback from the complainant. This 
was trialled for a 3 month period however the force did not receive any 
replies. The use of an external agency to provide a feedback service has 
been considered but discounted on the basis of value for money. 
 
Complainants have regular and repeated contact with investigating 
officers throughout an investigation and have the ability to air concerns 
in relation to the investigation throughout. These can be escalated to 
the Appropriate Authority for an opinion where appropriate. As PSD do 
not believe that any further action is required in this area. 
 

 

  
Corporate Communications has instigated a number of actions these 
are reported below: 

P
age 53



20 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

AMBER  

Action Required: 
I. Build communications channels both internal and external to 

enable information to be received. [1.2] 
 
Current Position: 
CoL Procurement have been briefed and a process is underway to 

establish external audience views. In the interim the force will be using 

free online survey tools, with enhanced promotion via established 

channels.   Internally several new communication channels have been 

developed to facilitate seeking staff views, including the internal comms 

forum Technology options are also being reviewed to enable the force 

to gather views from across the organisation  

Small group meetings are now held with chief officers and are proving 

popular channels, such as breakfast with the AC, and ad-hoc musters 

and briefings attended by T/Commander Ops.   

Action Required: 
II. Engage with businesses in the City to establish if, via their 

internal communications functions, we can build a City workers’ 
forum. [1.3] 

 
Current Position: 
Initial attempts to generate interest via the Community Bulletin or the 
Crime Prevention Association did not prove fruitful.   
The CoLP have now launched a fortnightly (electronic) news bulletin – 
Skyline.  Promotion is ongoing with work to enable utilisation of CoL 
comprehensive distribution lists for access to business rate payers City 
Occupiers database to reach out to City communities as widely as 
possible.  
Discussions with City of London news publisher City Matters are being 

P
age 54



21 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

progressed with the intent of delivering a regular weekly or fortnightly 
column in paper.   

Action Required: 
III.  Work with the Corporation of London to establish how we can 

work together to use their existing channels and tools to 
engage with the hard to reach communities within the City, 
such as via the City Resident magazine. [1.4] 

 
Current Position: 
Fortnightly electronic Skyline news bulletin has been launched with 
invitations sent via existing CoL and CoLP databases to subscribe (free).  
This is also being promoted at regular business and community 
engagement working groups. 
Working with City Resident Publication team to continue engagement 
via the City Resident magazine.  They have committed to including 
contact details (on Twitter, Facebook etc) in Bengali.   
A City Police Communities page has been launched on Facebook for 
specific engagement with resident communities.   

Action Required: 
IV. External website to be redesigned to include a ‘you said, we 

did’ section.  [1.5] 
Current Position: 
2 designs for the force website have been produced that will bring force 
policing priorities to the fore and representing ‘you said, we did’.  It is 
anticipated the selected design will be implement by mid September.   
 
 
 

P
age 55



22 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

Action Required: 
V. Have ‘you said, we did’ as content on our Twitter feed [1.6]  

Current Position: 
Twitter and Facebook activity took place between 24th April and 5th May 
2017, including ‘you said, we did’ materials.  An evaluation of the first 
campaign is being undertaken.   
 
The content for a second wave of social media activity planned for end 
of September is being developed. 
 

4 
 
Areas for improvement The force should improve how it 
identifies and understands its workforce’s wellbeing needs. 

RED 
March 

2017 

 
The force has established a Well Being Plan, the initial steps of which 
are to engage with the wider workforce including Specials and 
Volunteers 
 
Action Required: 
Identify ‘well being’ question and include then in the staff survey 
 
Current progress: 
The force has established a Well Being Plan and a Senior Officer has 
absorbed the role of Well Being Champion. 
 
The force has undertaken a staff survey facilitated by Durham 
University – report pending, but a telephone conference has taken 
place and presentation of finding to SLT scheduled. 
 
The force will produce an action plan in response to the report which 
will also inform the Well Being Plan at this point this will be GREEN. 

5 
Areas for improvement 
The force should improve how it manages individual 
performance of its officers and staff. 

RED 
March 

2017 

 
The force has established a Performance Development Action Plan with 
a timeline for delivery of December 2017. 

P
age 56



23 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

 
The Talent Development Strategy has been produced against this plan 
with its own delivery plan. 

 
 
 

PEEL: Police Efficiency 2016 CoLP 
A Force report by HMIC 
Published November 2016 
 
Total of 5 actions: 0 are national and outside the remit of City of London Police. 

5 are relevant to the City of London Police, 4 are complete and 1 in progress.  

 

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

1 

Causes of Concern 
The lack of clear coherent plans in the CoLP is a cause for 
concern to HMIC.  It means that it is not possible for us to be 
confident that the force will continue to be able to provide 
efficient and effective policing in the future.  To address the 
cause of concern HMIC sets out a recommendation below: 
 
Recommendation  
By 31st May 2017 CoLP needs to complete its ICT Strategy, 
Workforce Plan and analysis of future demand for its services.   

NEW 
GREEN 

May 17 

ICT Strategy has been produced and was presented to IT Sub 
Committee on 22nd Feb 2017. 
 
Workforce Plan  
The Workforce Plan was presented to Committee in Feb 2017 and is 
now a standing agenda item for Strategic Workforce Planning.  The plan 
will be updated bi-annually 
 
Future Demand. 
External Consultants have now completed their work and reports have 
been presented to CoL / CoLP in July.  Report recommendations were 
discussed and agreed with the Force SLT in August and Force briefings 
on the Demand and Value for Money review are scheduled for Sept.  
The STRA process also now includes demand forecasting. 

P
age 57



24 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

2 

Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should ensure its understanding of the 
demand for its services, and the expectations of the public, is 
up to date by regularly reviewing the evidence on which it 
bases its decisions. It should do this alongside local authorities, 
other emergency services and organisations that work with the 
police to care for victims or prevent crime. Involving all these 
agencies will help to ensure that it takes the necessary steps to 
meet current and likely future demand, including unreported 
or ‘hidden demand’.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

March 
2017 

[Internal 
deadline] 

With the delivery of the external consultants report together with the 
annual STRA process this is now GREEN.   

3 

 
Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should ensure that it understands the 
level of service that it can provide at different levels of 
expenditure, so it can identify the most effective and efficient 
way to provide its services.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

March 
2017 

[Internal 
deadline] 

 
Expenditure options are a key feature within the 2017 STRA process 
which has commenced. 

4 

 
Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should put in place better processes and 
an effective governance structure to realise the benefits of 
projects, change programmes and collaborative work, and 
understand how they affect the force's ability to meet current 
and likely future demand efficiently.  
 

NEW 
GREEN 

March 
2017 

[Internal 
deadline] 

A Benefits Strategy has been produced and a Benefits toolkit is to be 
trialled commencing August 2017 with the ‘HR Integrated’ project 
ahead of full implementation across new projects. 
 
Products and outcomes resulting from the benefits toolkit will be 
reviewed at Project Boards and summarised for Force Change Boards. 
 

5 

 
Areas for improvement 
City of London Police should review the capabilities of its 
workforce so it can identify and put plans in place to address 
any gaps. This will enable the force to be confident in its ability 

RED 

March 
2017 

[Internal 
deadline] 

This work has been addressed in the workforce plan to an extent and 
further developed by the use of Deloitte Consultants who have 
reported. Findings from the Deloitte report have been developed into a 
plan and a series of briefing to the workforce by Commander 
Operations have been diarised throughout September 2017. 

P
age 58



25 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

to meet current and likely future demand efficiently.   
A skills audit of the force is in progress due for delivery in October 2017 
at which point this will be GREEN. 

 

 

The tri-service review of the joint emergency services interoperability principles 
A national report by HMIC 
Published April 2016    
 
Total of 6 actions: 1 are national and outside the remit of City of London Police. 

5 are relevant to the City of London Police, 2 are still in progress.  

 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

3 

Recommendation  
Multi-agency testing and exercising programmes need to be 
better co-ordinated and risk-based beyond Local Resilience 
Forum Community Risk Registers and National Risk 
Assessments. These should be supported by a discrete budget 
allocation. The benefits for each service and trust need to be 
made clear at the design stage. The exercising programme 
should include issues identified through the Joint 
Organisational Learning process. 

RED 
April 2017 
[Internal 
deadline] 

The force undertakes regular testing exercises, although it is recognised 
that these could be better co-ordinated. This area of work has been 
allocated an Inspector resource to co-ordinate. Learning from exercises 
is captured at de-briefs and at Organisational Learning Forum. A central 
repository of documents relating to testing exercises is currently being 
created and the requirement for any discrete budget examined. At the 
conclusion of these activities this will be green. 
 

5 

Recommendation  
The blue light services need to have more effective processes 
in place for learning and embedding lessons locally and, for 
sharing the learning with staff. The knowledge and 
understanding of how the Joint Organisational Learning 
process is used to identify and record multi-agency lessons 
which are to be shared and escalated across services, needs to 
be greatly improved. 

RED 
April 2017 
[Internal 
deadline] 

NCALT training packages and awareness are to be utilised in embedding 
the JESIP principles in force. This training is now mandatory. Learning 
and Development are incorporating these packages into their training 
plans. 
In addition, learning outcomes from training exercises are fed into the 
force Organisational Learning Forum. 
 
MPS tri service training is also utilised, however this was suspended 

P
age 59



26 
V31.3 

Recommendations & Areas for Improvement Status Due Date Comment 

following the terrorist incidents and is being rescheduled. 
 
This will be green when a process is in place to record, track and 
evidence that learning has been embedded. 

 

PEEL: Police Effectiveness 2015 – CoLP 
 
A national report by HMIC 
Published February 2016 
 

Total of 2 actions: 0 are national and outside the remit of City of London Police. 

2 were areas relevant to the City of London Police and are complete. 

 
 

Recommendation Status Due Date Comment 

2 
 
 

The Force should improve the awareness of organised crime 
groups among neighbourhood teams to ensure that they can 
reliably identify these groups, collect intelligence and disrupt 
their activity. 

NEW 
GREEN 

March 
2016 

[Internal 
deadline] 

Force Intelligence Bureau has commenced delivering Organised Crime 
Group briefings to Community Policing. 
 
Specific ‘plan on a page’ briefings on organised crime gangs have 
commenced production – the first has been delivered to Uniform 
Policing Directorate and includes specific Intelligence requirements. 

 
 
 

P
age 60



27 
V31.3 

PEEL: Police efficiency 2015 
An inspection of the City of London Police by HMIC 
Published October 2015 
 
Total of 2 actions: 0 are national and outside the remit of City of London Police. 

2 were areas relevant to the City of London Police, 1 is still in progress.  

 

 

 

Recommendation Status Due Date 
Comment 

2 
To support the workforce plan, the force should improve how it 
records and retains information concerning the skills and 
knowledge of the workforce to identify future training needs.  

RED 
 

March 
2016 

[Internal 
deadline] 

 

An initial skills audit for the workforce has been undertaken with a 
more detail review due for completion by October 2017. 
 
Training requirements are being captured as part of the annual STRA 
process, thus informing the force training plan. The STRA identifies 
future needs. 
 

 
 

  

P
age 61



28 
V31.3 

 
 

In harm’s way: The role of the police in keeping children safe 
A national report 
Published July 2015, a joint inspection by HMIC and HMCPSi 
The report highlights areas for attention and does not make specific recommendations 
Total of 4 areas for attention [Strategic Development has subdivided for ease of assessment] 

Of these 1 is national and outside the remit of City of London Police, 1 is still in progress.  

 

 

 

 

 

Area for Attention Status Due Date Comment 

1 

At present senior officers do not know the outcomes for 
children following on from police activity. Nor do they know 
enough about the experiences and views of children who have 
been in contact with the police in order to inform service 
development.  
 
Information systems are poorly integrated and inputting data 
takes up considerable time that might be more usefully spent 
on investigations and enquiries. In failing to record basic data 
accurately such as the age, gender and ethnicity of children, 
police forces are unable to demonstrate they operate without 
discrimination. 

RED 

February 
2016 

[Internal 
deadline] 

A monthly report regarding the outcomes of juveniles who have been in 
police custody has been developed and is distributed monthly to Senior 
Management Teams [Uniform Policing and Crime Directorates, and also 
sent to Children’s Services and Education Departments at the City of 
London. 
 
The introduction of a questionnaire is progressing – questions have 
been designed together with a supporting process. Corporate 
Communications are currently progressing layout and printing. 
With the introduction of the questionnaire for use in Custody this will 
be GREEN. 

 

P
age 62



  

 

Committee(s): 
Police: Performance and Resource Management Sub-
Committee 

Date:  
26th September 2017 

Subject: 
1st Quarter Performance against measures set out in the 
Policing Plan 2017-20 

Public 

Report of: 
Commissioner of Police 
Pol 62-17  For Information 
Report author: 
Stuart Phoenix, Head of Strategic Development 
 

Summary  
1. This report summarises performance against the measures in the 

Policing Plan 2017-20 for the period 1st April 2017 to 30th June 2017. 
 

 

MEASURE ASSESSMENT 

Measure 1: The number of crimes committed in the City CLOSE MONITORING 

Measure 2: The capability and impact the Force is 
having against countering Terrorist Activity. 

CLOSE MONITORING 

Measure 3: The capability and impact the Force is 
having against countering Cyber Attacks. 

SATISFACTORY 

Measure 4: The capability and impact the Force is 
having against countering Fraud. 

SATISFACTORY 

Measure 5: The capability and impact the Force is 
having in safeguarding and protecting Vulnerable People. 

CLOSE MONITOIRNG 

Measure 6: The capability and impact the Force is 
having against countering Violent Crime. 

CLOSE MONITORING 

Measure 7: The capability and impact the Force is 
having in policing City Roads. 

CLOSE MONITORING 

Measure 8: The capability and impact the Force is 
having providing Protective Security to the City and 

responding to Public Order. 

REQUIRES ACTION 

Measure 9: The capability and impact the Force is 
having against countering Acquisitive Crime. 

CLOSE MONITORING 

Measure 10: The level of satisfaction of victims of crime 
with the service provided by the city of London police. 

AWAITING ANALYSIS 

Measure 11: The percentage of people surveyed who 
believe the police in the City of London are doing a good 

or excellent job. 

REPORTED 
ANNUALLY 

 
Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that your Sub Committee receives this report and notes 
its contents. 

 
 

 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



  

Page | 2 

Main Report 
 

 
Background 

 
1. This report presents Force performance against the measures published in your 

Committee’s Policing Plan 2017-20 to the end of the 1st quarter 2017-18 for the 
financial year (1st April 2017 – 31st March 2018). All relevant performance 
information is contained within Appendix ‘A’.   
 

2. For the Force Performance Management Group (PMG), measures are graded 
around whether performance is ‘satisfactory’, requires ‘close monitoring’ or 
‘requires action’, the criteria for this grading is supplied within the report for each 
measure and is contained within Appendix A. As requested at the Performance 
Sub-Committee meeting in May 2017, the report to your Committee now fully 
reflects the grading reported at PMG for consistency. 
 

3. Previous reports have, where possible, included historical data to indicate 
trends over the medium to longer term. Measures were significantly revised for 
the current policing plan to include more qualitative information; accordingly it is 
not possible to provide historical data in all cases.  
 

4. As previous performance reports, a broad overview of wider Force performance 
is also included for Members’ information and interest.  

 
Current Position 
 
Overview of Force Performance  

 
5. A comparison with the same period in 2016-17 shows that between 1st April and 

30th June 2017. 
 

 Total victim-based crime has risen from 1096 crimes reported in 2016/17 
to 1202 crimes reported in 2017. This represents an increase of 9.7%. To 
clarify this figure the main rise was within the category of acquisitive 
crime; Homicide, violence with injury, rape and other sexual offences 
have all reduced within this period. 
 

 Crimes against statute, which includes drugs offences, possession of 
weapons, public order offences and ‘miscellaneous crimes against 
society’1, had risen by 3.9%. (188 crimes compared to 181 the previous 
year).    

 

 At the end of June 2017, total notifiable crime had increased by 8.8% or 
113 offences (1390 crimes compared to 1277 the previous year). 

 

                                                 
1
 These crimes include prostitution, going equipped for stealing, perjury, perverting the course of justice, and 

possession of false documents, amongst others.  

Page 64



  

Page | 3 

6. Victim based acquisitive crime in the City of London remains a focus with 894 
crimes being recorded for the first quarter compared to 819 for the same period 
last year; this represents an increase of 9.2%. There are currently 3 SARAs 
(problem solving approach using Scanning, Analysis, Review and Assessment) 
operating to target victim based acquisitive crime, focusing on burglaries, theft 
from the retail sector and volume theft from licensed premises and ‘pick-
pocketing’. 
 

7. There are also a number of SARAs in operation to tackle violent crime; 
specifically targeting knife crime/Gang ANPR activations and violence and ASB 
around Liverpool Street station. 
 

8. Vulnerability is a new focus for the Force Plan coming from the Control Strategy 
review and to address this within the City a number of SARAs have been 
implemented to address human trafficking/Modern slavery, brothels, child 
sexual exploitation, drug dealing, sexual offences and suicide/attempted 
suicide.   

 
9. In addition to those items reported in previous quarterly reports to your Sub 

Committee,  notable Force achievements and activities during the 1st quarter 
2017/18 include the following: 
 

 In April an IFED (Insurance Fraud Enforcement Department) investigation 
led to six men being sentenced for their involvement in an insurance fraud 
scam for conspiracy to defraud by false representation. This fraud 
involved solicitors and accomplices who were all sentenced to a total of 
13 ½ years imprisonment. 
 

 A DCPCU (Cheque and Plastic Card Unit) investigation led to a 
suspended sentence for a care home manager in April. This individual 
had abused her position to get residents to withdraw cash which they then 
used to fund their gambling habit. This resulted in a suspended two year 
prison sentence. 

 

 An investigation referred to the Force’s Money Laundering and 
Investigation Unit (MLIU) by the Australian Federal Police led to a 
fraudster being imprisoned for nearly 3 years. The case was referred to 
the MLIU after over $700,000 (AUS) was removed from an Australian 
business account through a malware infection and transferred into a 
private bank account belonging to the defendant who used the money to 
fund a luxurious lifestyle. 

 

 In May four men were sentenced for using stolen credit cards from gym 
lockers to fund a lavish spending spree. CCTV was used to link several 
thefts from multiple gym lockers within the Square Mile and the wider 
London area over a period of six months. 

 

 A man was sentenced of three counts of conspiracy to murder following a 
trial at the Old Bailey. The Force Major Crime Team conducted the 

Page 65



  

Page | 4 

investigation where a man had attempted to hire a hit man to kill his wife 
in order to inherit her wealth. 

 

 In June man was sentenced to 30 months in prison at Inner London 
Crown Court, after pleading guilty to selling goods with unauthorised 
trademarks. He sold and distributed fake merchandise via eBay, bearing 
the branding and logos of music artists and designer brands totalling over 
£150,000. 

 

 In June a CID investigation saw a man jailed for three years for attempted 
robbery.  At court he pleaded guilty to one count of attempted robbery and 
two counts of possession of a bladed article. 

 

 All force activities within the first quarter have been impacted with the 
operational commitment to increase visible policing following the 
Manchester and London Bridge terror attacks within May and June. 
During this period the Force raised its uniformed policing profile within the 
City through supporting activity from its Crime Investigation, Economic 
Crime and Intelligence and Information Directorates where officers were 
re-deployed to support the physical policing of the Square Mile and fulfil 
other national obligations.  

 

Performance against measures 
 

10. There are 11 measures reflected within the Force Plan for 2017/18 reviewing 
overall crime, the Force Control Strategy priorities, victim satisfaction and public 
survey around the perception of police within the City. 
 

11. Measure 1 – This is a new measure for the Force Plan as it tracks the overall 
crime picture and ASB statistics for the City. While previously recorded these 
had not been used as a measure for the Force in a holistic way. For the first 
quarter this measure has been assessed as Close Monitoring reflecting the 
8.2% increase in recorded crime. 

 
12. The next 8 measures reported cover the priority crime, threat, harm areas 

identified within the Force Strategic Assessment, which form the basis of the 
Control Strategy. The Policing Plan highlighted these as the main priorities for 
the Force within year and the measures contain a suite of indicators and 
performance information assessing the capability of the Force to tackle the 
issue and the impact work is having. 
 

13. Each area of the Control Strategy is assigned a Plan Owner; at the monthly 
Tactical Tasking & Co-ordinating Group (TT&CG) the plan owners provide an 
update as to the progress against their areas. This information is used to inform 
the plan assessment as to the achievement of each measure. Work is detailed 
in 4 areas, Pursue, Protect, Prepare and Prevent so the plan owner can 
articulate the progress being made in each area to mitigate the crime/threat 
area within the City. Updates on these areas are provided for each of these 
measures along with a suite of performance information that is designed to track 
any impact our tactics may be having over the course of the year. 

Page 66



  

Page | 5 

 
14. Measure 2 – This is recorded as Close Monitoring for the end of the quarter 

reflecting the heightened work on-going around counter terrorism following the 
recent terror attacks in Manchester and London Bridge.  
 

15. Measure 5 – This is recorded as Close Monitoring as the Force expands it 
intelligence around vulnerability and engages with partner agencies to prevent 
further suicide attempts within the City. A significant amount of work is being 
undertaken in this area as we seek to increase our capability to protect 
vulnerable people within the City. 
 

16. Measure 6 - The Force is implementing a number of SARAs to combat violent 
crime, this is recorded as close monitoring so that the impact they are having is 
assessed. It reflects that we are reducing violence with injury and other crimes 
within this category while violence without injury is the crime type that continues 
to rise.  
 

17. Measure 7 – There has been a slight rise in the number of offences recorded 
on the roads within the first quarter this year (595 offences compared with 534 
for the same period last year). This reflects that this measure is Close 
Monitoring for the period while we assess if this is a trend or a blip within the 
figures. 
 

18. Measure 8 – This is highlighted as Requires Action with the Force assessing 
there is a gap in capability with sufficiently trained Public Order level 2 officers. 
This is a risk highlighted to PMG and an action plan is in place to recruit 
sufficient officers to post. It is envisaged that the situation around capability will 
improve in the next quarter as the vacant posts are filled and the Force has 
sufficiently trained officers in post.  
 

19. Measure 9 – Acquisitive crime has risen for the first quarter but seen a slight 
reduction in June on the previous year, while it is too soon to know if the work 
and tactics being employed are making a difference here the Force has 
assessed this area as Close Monitoring due to the amount of work being 
undertaken to mitigate this crime area within the City. 
 

20. Measure 10 – The victim satisfaction survey is undertaken quarterly. The data 
for the first quarter has just been received by the Force and at the time of report 
writing has not been analysed for inclusion within the plan report.  
 

21. Measure 11 – This is reported annually and the survey has not yet been 
undertaken.   

 

Appendix ‘A’ Performance Summary  
 

Contact: 
Stuart Phoenix 
Head of Strategic Planning 

020 7601 2213Stuart.phoenix@cityoflondon.pnn.police.uk  

Page 67

mailto:Stuart.phoenix@cityoflondon.pnn.police.uk


  

APPENDIX A – PERFORMANCE SUMMARY FOR 1st APRIL – 30th JUNE 2017 
 

1. City Crime Overview 
 

Area  1 City Crime Overview 

AIM/RATIONALE To ensure the overall picture of crime within the City is monitored and emerging trends are acted upon within year. 

MEASUREMENT 

PMG will receive data around current levels of overall crime, trend information and analysis.   
 
GUIDE:     SATISFACTORY: Reducing trend of crime or within statistical tolerance levels (as indicated monthly on performance charts) 
                  CLOSE MONITORING:  No stable trends indicated or increase on previous month 
                  REQUIRES ACTION:  Systemic increase in levels of crime 

DATA SOURCES FIB 

ASSESSMENT CLOSE MONITORING 

 

Crime Category 
 

2015/16 
 

2016/17 
 

Change 
  

Last FYTD 
 

Current FYTD 
 

Change 

 
From Apr-15 

 
From Apr-16 

 
No. % 

  
From Apr-16 

 
From Apr-17 

 
No. % 

 
To Mar-16 

 
To Mar-17 

   
To Jun-16 

 
To Jun-17 

 Homicide 
 

2 
 

1 
 

-1 -50.0% 
  

0 
 

2 
 

2 200.0% 

Violence with Injury 
 

408 
 

381 
 

-27 -6.6% 
  

94 
 

80 
 

-14 -14.9% 

Violence without Injury 
 

410 
 

478 
 

68 16.6% 
  

118 
 

128 
 

10 8.5% 

Rape 
 

24 
 

10 
 

-14 -58.3% 
  

5 
 

7 
 

2 40.0% 

Other Sexual Offences 
 

67 
 

51 
 

-16 -23.9% 
  

12 
 

19 
 

7 58.3% 

Victim-Based Violence 
 

911 
 

921 
 

10 1.1% 
  

229 
 

236 
 

7 3.1% 

Robbery of Business Property 
 

1 
 

2 
 

1 100.0% 
  

0 
 

1 
 

1 100.0% 

Robbery of Personal Property 
 

40 
 

26 
 

-14 -35.0% 
  

5 
 

11 
 

6 120.0% 

Burglary in a Dwelling 
 

7 
 

24 
 

17 242.9% 
  

2 
 

0 
 

-2 -100.0% 

Burglary - Non Dwelling 
 

226 
 

237 
 

11 4.9% 
  

47 
 

62 
 

15 31.9% 

Vehicle Offences 
 

109 
 

183 
 

74 67.9% 
  

54 
 

43 
 

-11 -20.4% 

Theft from the Person 
 

423 
 

466 
 

43 10.2% 
  

100 
 

130 
 

30 30.0% 

Bicycle Theft 
 

275 
 

373 
 

98 35.6% 
  

98 
 

101 
 

3 3.1% 

Shoplifting 
 

678 
 

726 
 

48 7.1% 
  

157 
 

180 
 

23 14.6% 

All Other Theft Offences 
 

1422 
 

1509 
 

87 6.1% 
  

356 
 

366 
 

10 2.8% 

Victim-Based Acquisitive 
 

3181 
 

3546 
 

365 11.5% 
  

819 
 

894 
 

75 9.2% 

P
age 68



  

Page | 
7 

Arson 
 

7 
 

3 
 

-4 -57.1% 
  

1 
 

1 
 

0 0.0% 

Criminal Damage 
 

255 
 

222 
 

-33 -12.9% 
  

47 
 

71 
 

24 51.1% 

Arson and Criminal Damage 
 

262 
 

225 
 

-37 -14.1% 
  

48 
 

72 
 

24 50.0% 

Victim Based Crime 
 

4352 
 

4681 
 

329 7.6% 
  

1096 
 

1202 
 

106 9.7% 

Drug Offences 
 

394 
 

331 
 

-63 -16.0% 
  

83 
 

86 
 

3 3.6% 

Possession of Off Weaps 
 

34 
 

43 
 

9 26.5% 
  

8 
 

10 
 

2 25.0% 

Public Order Offences 
 

262 
 

224 
 

-38 -14.5% 
  

51 
 

60 
 

9 17.6% 

Misc Crimes Against Society 
 

178 
 

179 
 

1 0.6% 
  

39 
 

32 
 

-7 -17.9% 

Crimes Against Society 
 

868 
 

777 
 

-91 -10.5% 
  

181 
 

188 
 

7 3.9% 

All Crime 
 

5220 
 

5458 
 

238 4.6% 
  

1277 
 

1390 
 

113 8.8% 
C 
 

Fraud figures will also be included in the summary but separately as they are not currently part of the overall crime figures detailed above that are reported 
to the Home Office. 

 
  

P
age 69



  

Page | 
8 

ASB Data 
 

ASB Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

2015-16 (Month) 65 72 84 81 93 65 75 62 65 67 92 55 931 

2016-17 (Month) 79 51 65 74 97 157* 173 169 159 130 150 182 1668 

2017-18 (Month) 155 164 154 
         

319 

 

April 2015 – March 2016: 931 
April 2016 – March 2017: 1668 
April 2017 – May 2017: 473 
 
* From September 2016 there was a change in Force recording practice with ASB which resulted in more ASB incidents being recorded to ensure the Force followed 
accepted crime recording practices.   

P
age 70



  

Page | 
9 

 

Monthly Chart 

All Crime 

Overall Crime Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

2015-16 (Month) 431 419 443 468 425 431 423 449 498 380 418 433 5218 

2016-17 (Month) 433 408 436 463 494 493 442 467 489 354 450 536 5465 

2017-18 (Month) 457 481 452                     

Change (Month) 
24 73 16                     

5.54% 17.89% 3.67%                     

  
 

 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

  

R² = 0.1936 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

M
o

n
th

A
p

r-
1

5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

P
age 71



  

Page | 
10 

 

2. Counter Terrorism 4P Overview 
 

Area 2 Counter Terrorism 

4P Plan Lead DCI Service 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to combat the terrorist threat facing the City and ensure the Force is providing 
an adequate response to mitigate this threat.  

DEFINITIONS 
 

MEASUREMENT 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                       Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:      Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other areas  
                                       within the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the  
                                       City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other areas  
                                        to work on desired outcomes. 
                                       Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach used. 

DATA SOURCE SB & PIU 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact CLOSE MONITORING 

 
 
OP LIGHTNING REPORTS WITHIN CITY  
 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  

Op Lightning Reports 
2015-16 

11 7 13 10 10 7 19 30 17 9 8 15 
CURRENT THREAT LEVEL 

Op Lightning Reports 
2016-17 

20 6 12 20 17 14 21 9 12 18 11 22 SEVERE 

Op Lightning Reports 
2017-18 

18 22 35          
THREAT LEVEL FROM PREVIOUS 

MONTH 

Trend             SEVERE 
 
While the threat level remains Severe The Force has implemented the Critical Plan in response to recent events within Manchester (May) and London (June).  
 
 
 
 
City Counter Terrorism Briefings 

P
age 72



  

Page | 
11 

 

 
2015/16 YTD Briefing Total = 251 (Total 951) 

2016/17 YTD Briefing Total = 240 (Total 827) 

2017/18 YTD Briefing Total =  156 

 
Counter Terrorism Investigation Demand  

 
 

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

2015/16 briefings, 
training and table top 
exercises 

82 86 83 105 57 74 71 80 74 54 82 103 

2016/17 briefings, 
training and table top 
exercises 

98 95 47 80 43 83 45 93 47 61 49 86 

2017/18 briefings, 
training and table top 
exercises 

33 67 56          

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Number of 
Investigations processed 
by CT FMIU 

26 40 50          

Trend -            

Year to Date Rolling 
Total 

26 66 116          

 
  

P
age 73



  

Page | 
12 

 

Pursue Update 
Other investigations include 5 Priority lead matters, Force FIMU processed 651 CTDE related matters during June 2017, increase of 245 from last month. 
DSU continue to manage 9 CHIS (8 CT, 1 DE). 
Lightning reporting now live on Toughpad for faster response and outcome. 

Protect Update 

 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Number Griffin Attendees 104 110 60          

Percentage consider Force 
capable 

100% 100% 100%          

Number Argus Attendees 48 21 93          

Percentage consider Force 
capable 

100% 100% 100%          

 
HVM and City security meetings continue to be attended by CTSA supervisor and other interested parties. Further DEO training is taking place and Lead on 
National servitor training (NCTPHQ). Extensive comms coverage, social media to internal and external community by Corporate Communications. CTSA being 
assisted by network due to workload. 
 
Friendly Hostile deployments reports being examined to improve deployments. 

Prevent Update 

CTLP and PREVENT Strategy documents still under review. The Prevent Team has worked with the Prevent Referral document no live on the Toughpad.  
 
The City of London Prevent Strategy is written and has been agreed by the Safer City Partnership (12 June 2017) subject to inclusion of reference to health 
services and minor amendments.  The CTLP has been completed however with the number of recent incidents in London and nationwide it is being updated 
prior to circulation. A delivery plan has been devised to brief the CTLP to all statutory partners once finalised.  

Prepare Update 

Red Flag 2 exercise 16
th

 June 2017. Review of the 19x Survivor Reception Centres across the City, used Andaz Hotel during LB attack awaiting debrief. 
 
13th June CoLP with BTP and Network Rail exercise at Stratford. Scenario was an IED at Liverpool Street, awaiting debrief. 
 
I&I SMT requested a building lockdown SOP being reviewed before sign off. 

 
  

P
age 74



  

Page | 
13 

COUNTER TERRORISM 
 

PROJECT SERVATOR STATS for June 
 

Stop searches – 11 

Section.1 - 5 

Section.23 – 6 

Positive – 8 = 73% search to result. 

Negative – 3 

Intelligence reports – 11 

Op lightning - 1 

Vehicle seizure – 4 

Drugs warning / processes – 2. 

 

Courses ran for other forces;   

DEO course 8th – 11th May.  

DEOP course 15th – 18th May.  

 

2016-2017 Ratio of stop searches to positive outcomes; 
167 searches 

Section.1 - 30 

Section.23 - 136 

Section.43 - TACT - 1 

POSITIVE – 117 - 70% 

NEGATIVE – 50 

Arrests; - 126 arrests 

False identity document seizures: 22  

Vehicle, drug and cash seizures; 
53 x vehicle seizures.  

23 x drug warning / process. 

863 individual wraps of Cocaine.  

Approx £37,878 pounds cash seized. 

Penetration testing reports from ‘Friendly Hostiles’ a report will 

follow from Matthew Hone. 

There are currently 40 REACT trained security Staff. 

 
 
 
 

  

P
age 75



  

Page | 
14 

3. Cyber Attack 4P Overview 
 

Area 3 Cyber Attack 

4P Plan Lead DCI Stokes 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to combat the cyber crime threat facing the City and ensure the Force is providing an 
adequate response to mitigate this threat. 

DEFINITIONS 
Cyber Crime is a crime undertaken using... 
Cyber enabled crime is a  

MEASUREMENT 

Assessment is based on current levels of cyber crime, trend information and analysis.   
 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                Capability: The Force has sufficient specialist resources/capability to respond effectively to local victims/incidents of cyber-crime and to  

                                       implement the wider 4P plan  

                                      Impact: There is evidence to suggest the tactics used are having a positive impact on tackling the local threat and also contributing  

                                      towards tackling the broader national threat 

Close Monitoring:      Capability: The Force has a shortage of specialist resources/capability to respond effectively to local victims/incidents of cyber-crime and  

                                       to implement the wider 4P plan, but there are measures in place to address the current shortfall  

                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence to suggest the tactics used are having a positive impact on tackling the local threat or contributing  

                                       towards tackling the broader national threat  

Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have sufficient specialist resources/capability to respond effectively to local victims/incidents of cyber- 

                                        crime and to implement the wider 4P plan and there are no measures in place to address the current shortfall 

                                        Impact: The tactics used are not having a positive impact on tackling the local threat or contributing towards tackling the broader  

                                        national threat  

DATA SOURCE PIU (I&I) for crime stats 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact SATISFACTORY 

 
  

P
age 76



  

Page | 
15 

 

 

Cyber Crime NFIB Referrals Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

2015-16 (Month) 1 2 2 0 2 4 2 0 2 0 2 1 

2016-17 (Month) 1 3 5 0 3 7 2 2 4 5 2 0 

2017-18 (Month) 0 4 6 
         

Change (Month) 
-1 +1 +1 

         
   

         

2015-16 (YTD) 1 3 5 5 7 11 13 13 15 15 17 18 

2016-17 (YTD) 1 4 9 9 12 19 21 23 27 32 34 34 

2017-18 (YTD) 0 4 10 
         

Change (YTD) 
-1 0 +1 

         
   

         
 
 

Bespoke Cyber Protect Victim 
Meetings Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Victim Meetings 1 6 6 
         

Number of NFIB Cyber Referrals 0 4 6 
         

Difference +1 +2 - 
         

 

Volume of Intelligence 
Disseminations Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Number of Disseminations 0 5 6 
         

2017-18 (YTD) 0 5 11 
         

               

               Capturing volume of intelligence disseminations relating to harmful entities to law enforcement partners; regional/national/international 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 77



  

Page | 
16 

Pursue Update 

A suspect who was charged with 7 offences for CMA (CR/7150/17) pleaded guilty at court to all offences.  
 
OP Jetstream (Corporate Espionage, value up to 20 Million Pounds) continues. Analytical support requested as a possible international conspiracy has also 
emerged. Enquiries on going but will result in charges. 
 
Suspect identified and to be arrested for a Sec 3 CMA offence   - Company SPF 
 
As part of the City of London Police participation in the Home Office project on mobile networks NAT & PAT Internet Protocol Address Resolution, visited EE in 
Bristol and revealed the new tactic available to Law Enforcement. In addition CoLP also hosted Vodafone HMRC and the Home Office at Wood Street as part of 
the project.  
   
Cyber Crime Unit is monitoring CPS in relation to indecent images/videos of children being shared on peer to peer platforms originating from the City of 
London. Currently awaiting the results of 2 I.P. results which if in the City will lead to arrests.  
 
1 New Officers started with the unit 3

rd
 July with 2

nd
 Officer due to start 3

rd
 August. 

Protect Update 

Planned presentation to Virgin Bank in partnership with Op Falcon. 
 
Planning underway with London Digital Security Centre and Op Falcon to deliver Five days of action on the week commencing 11

th
 September, and aligned to 

the National Cyber Resilience Week.  
 
Cyber Protect officer recruited, due to start mid August. Training for role has already commenced. 

Prevent Update 
Presentation at the City of London Boys School in partnership with Communities advising children how to stay safe on-line. Second area designed to stop 
children being drawn into low level crime.  

Prepare Update 

Having recently PA’d a crime which involved the hack of the Turkish Chamber of Commerce and Industry’s website based in the City. They have since replaced 
their old CMS with Wordpress – We are considering offering a free vulnerability analysis of their new website but are seeking advice regarding our legal liability 
before this offer is made.  
 
Disparity between reports recorded and those referred to CoLP for action from Action Fraud. Ongoing work to provide victim liaison for those cases not 

deemed suitable for investigation to ensure victims have the support they need. 

 
  

P
age 78



  

Page | 
17 

4. Fraud 4P Overview 
 

Area 4 Fraud 

4P Plan Lead D.Supt Woodall 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to combat the fraud threat facing the City and ensure the Force is providing an 
adequate response to mitigate this threat. 

DEFINITIONS 
 

MEASUREMENT 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                 Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                        Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:       Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from  
                                       other areas within the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level  
                                       facing the City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other  
                                        areas to work on desired outcomes. 
                                        Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change  
                                        approach used. 

DATA SOURCE 
 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact SATISFACTORY 

 
Assessment Rational:  

The capability assessment is based upon the FIB Strategic Assessment 2017/18 wherein Fraud capability within the force is currently assessed as “3 - Resourcing issues Impede the 
management of the issue”. Currently within the ECD resourcing issues and vacancies have remained and fraud investigations present high demand and are resource intensive.   

The impact of the ECD on Fraud has also been assessed as close monitoring. This is due to the fact that the impact the directorate is able to have upon fraud is limited as a direct result of its 
capability.  

Despite both assessments being recorded as close monitoring the directorate has continued to achieve successes as is highlighted within the performance measures and the 4P update. 

 

Overview - The number of frauds reported and disseminated within the City. 

Please Note: It should be noted that fraud investigations focus on criminal activity location rather than victim location. Therefore the crimes referred and accepted for investigation by CoLP 
will not necessarily relate to those reported by City of London based victims. City of London based victims may therefore have their crime (if appropriate) investigated by other forces or ECD 
departments (IFED, DCPCU), due to the location of the suspected criminal activity. 

 
 

P
age 79



  

Page | 
18 

The number of fraud crimes reported by City based victims to Action Fraud  

 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

City based victim reports 2017/18 37 41 47 
       

  125 

City based victim reports 2016/17 57 44 41 42 41 66 120 289 33 42 41 49 865 

City based victim reports 2015/16 40 46 52 121 109 134 60 61 35 31 54 45 788 

 

The number of city based crimes (NFRCs) disseminated by the NFIB  to CoLP for investigation  

 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

NFRC disseminations to CoLP 2017/18 23 56 39 
       

  118 

NFRC disseminations to CoLP 2016/17 53 24 9 30 29 8 30 222 112 23 24 427 991 

NFRC disseminations to CoLP 2015/16 37 47 62 57 28 73 594 189 237 50 51 27 1,452 

 
Fraud crimes reported by City based victims to Action Fraud during the month. 

During June 47 fraud crime reports were made by City of London based victims. A breakdown of the crimes by fraud type is recorded below: The most common reported crime type is 
NFIB90 – None of the above with 15 reports. This crime type is often made up of the misreporting of the following codes: NFIB5A - Cheque, Plastic Card online bank accounts, NFIB3G – 
Retail Fraud and NFIB3A – Online shopping and auctions, all of which are also included within the top 10 reported categories. 

 

NFIB code 
Number of 

Reports 
NFIB code 

Number of 
Reports 

NFIB90 - None of the Above 15 NFIB16B - Pension Fraud committed on Pensions 2 

NFIB5D - Mandate Fraud 7 NFIB19 - Fraud by Abuse of Position of Trust 2 

NFIB2E - Other Financial Investment 4 NFIB1H - Other Advance Fee Frauds 2 

NFIB5A - Cheque, Plastic Card and Online Bank Accounts  4 NFIB3G - Retail Fraud 2 

NFIB3A - Online Shopping and Auctions 3 NFIB3D - Other Consumer Non Investment Fraud 2 

NFIB8A - Corporate Employee Fraud 3 NFIB6A - Insurance Related Fraud 1 

 

 

 

 

 

NFIB disseminations to the City during the month. 

P
age 80



  

Page | 
19 

39 City fraud crimes were disseminated to the Fraud Hub for investigation in June. It should be noted that fraud crimes are disseminated for investigation based on where the offender, not 
the victim, is based; therefore there is no correlation between the number of victim reports made within the city and the number of crimes disseminated to CoLP for investigation. 

A breakdown of the City fraud crimes disseminated to CoLP for investigation in June is recorded below. The most common fraud type referred for investigations was “Other Financial 
Investment”. 

NFIB code 
Number of 

Reports 
NFIB code 

Number of 
Reports 

NFIB2E - Other Financial Investment 20 NFIB90 - Other Fraud (Not covered elsewhere) 4 

NFIB1H - Other Advance Fee Frauds 5 NFIB3D - Other Consumer Non Investment Fraud 3 

NFIB8A - Corporate Employee Fraud 4 NFIB2A - Share sales or Boiler Room Fraud 3 

 

Asset Recovery Update 

There are currently 75 confiscation investigations, 11 enforcement investigations and 20 cash seizure investigations ongoing within the Asset Recovery Team. 

Cash Seizures. If the police find £1,000 or more in any type of currency, cheques or bonds, and suspect that it has come from or is intended to be used to commit crime they can seize and 
detain the funds. A breakdown by month of the cash seizure first applications undertaken can be viewed below.   

Cash Seizures April May June 

Number of cash seizure first applications POCA 4 0 1 

Value of cash seizure first applications POCA £174,000 £0.00 £22,380 

It should be noted that a) Monies seized may be subject of victim compensation applications. b) Monies seized may not subsequently materialise as ARIS funds. 

 

Cash Forfeiture Orders are granted by the court, where cash seized (£1,000 or above) from a suspect, has been proved to be criminal proceeds to a civil standard and the court have ordered 
its forfeiture. A monthly breakdown of cash forfeiture orders can be viewed below. It should be noted that the orders will not relate to the cash seizures undertaken in the same month. 

 

Cash Forfeiture Orders April May June 

Number of cash forfeiture orders POCA 1 0 1 

Value of cash forfeiture orders POCA £7,530 £0.00 £3,750 

 
Confiscation Orders are granted by the court against a convicted defendant ordering them to pay the amount of his benefit from crime. Victim compensation is often awarded from a 
confiscation order, which means funds recovered from the defendant will be allocated to victims and therefore not allocated through the ARIS scheme. A monthly breakdown of confiscation 
orders can be viewed below.  

Confiscation Orders April May June 

Number of confiscation orders 1 3 2 

Value of confiscation - benefit figure £37,313 £313,527 £382,649.48 

P
age 81



  

Page | 
20 

Value of confiscation - available amount £37,313 £228,174 £274,191.57 

Number of victims receiving compensation 1 0 0 

Value of victim compensation £23,000 £0.00 £0.00 

 
SARs  
Year to date the SARs desk have received and analysed 11 consent SARs. 3 of these SARs have led to activity being refused with a value of £106,728. A SAR (Suspicious Activity Report) is a 
report made by a financial institution about suspicious or potentially suspicious activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Measure 1 - City fraud Investigations resulting in positive action 

Aim:  Ensuring that all enforcement and learning opportunities are utilised through judicial outcomes, disruptions or intelligence products will help to reduce the impact of the economic 
threat within the City, improve our knowledge and capability and enhance victim satisfaction. 

Measurement: Measurement will be based upon the percentage of City fraud investigations reaching the point of outcome that have resulted in a positive action. Positive action can be 
defined as a judicial outcome, a confirmed disruption, or the investigation contributing towards an intelligence product. 

Linked 4P Plan: ECD Fraud Team & CoLP officer’s activity (Pursue), OP Broadway activity (Prevent), Issued products and alerts, stakeholder engagement and media campaigns (Protect), 
Information sharing with public/private partners (Prepare). 

Current Years Data Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

2017/18 
Percentage of City fraud investigations 

resulting in a positive outcome. 
100% 100% 100% 

       
  

P
age 82



  

Page | 
21 

 

Analysis of trends and activity: 

During June 3 investigations into fraud that had taken place within the City reached the point of outcome. 2 of these investigations resulted in the suspects being charged; the third 
investigation resulted in a disruption. Year to date 7 City based fraud investigations have concluded. All have resulted in positive outcomes.  

 

Number of City fraud Investigations reaching 
point of outcome. 

2 2 3 
       

  

Number of City fraud investigations resulting 
in a positive outcome. 

2 2 3 
       

  

Previous Years Data  

2016/17 
Percentage of City fraud investigations 

resulting in a positive outcome. 
100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(4/4) 

100% 
(1/1) 

100% 
(4/4) 

N/A 
(0/0) 

N/A 
(0/0) 

100% 
(3/3) 

100% 
(8/8) 

100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(1/1) 

100% 
(4/4) 

100% 
(1/1) 

2015/16 
Percentage of City fraud investigations 

resulting in a positive outcome. 
100% 
(3/3) 

100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(2/2) 

100% 
(2/2) 

N/A 
(0/0) 

100% 
(3/3) 

N/A 
(0/0) 

100% 
(5/5) 

100% 
(1/1) 

N/A 
(0/0) 

 
 
 
 

 
Measure 2 - CoLP Outcome Rate  

Aim: To ensure the effective response to fraud offenders operating within the jurisdiction of the City of London highlighting the impact of demand and capability. 

Measurement: The CoLP outcome rate is the percentage of NFRCs reaching a point of outcome compared to the number disseminated to CoLP for investigation. This measure looks at 
cumulative data from AFs inception in 2013 to present. 

Linked 4P Plan: Overview of Enforcement activity (Pursue) 

 
 

Apr 2013 – 
Mar 2016 

Apr 2013 – 
Mar 2017 

Q1 
(Apr 2013 – Jun 2017) 

Q2 
(Apr 2013 – Sep 2017) 

Q3 
(Apr 2013 – Dec 2017) 

Q4 
(Apr 2013 – Mar 2018) 

Cumulative number of crimes disseminated to 
CoLP 

4,353 5,426 5,549    

Cumulative number of judicial outcomes  306 771 775    

Cumulative number of non-judicial outcomes 124 366 381    

Outcome rate 9.88% 20.95% 20.83%    

 
Analysis of trends and activity: 

P
age 83



  

Page | 
22 

 
Since April 2014, 5,549 City of London crimes have been disseminated to the Fraud Teams for investigation. 1,156 investigative outcomes have subsequently been reported by the Fraud 
Teams. This gives a cumulative outcome rate of 20.83% of disseminated crimes resulting in an outcome. This is a slight decrease compared to the outcome rate of 20.95% reported in March 
2017; it is however, over 10% higher than the outcome rate of 9.69% reported this time last year in June 2016.  

 

 
  

P
age 84



  

Page | 
23 

 

 

Measure 3 - The percentage of victims  of fraud satisfied with the overall service provided by ECD officers  

Aim: To ensure that a first class service is provided to victims of fraud giving them support at all stages throughout the investigative process. 

Measurement: The percentage of victims of fraud satisfied with the overall service provided by ECD officers. This measure is reported using cumulative data from April 2014.  

Linked 4P Plan: Op Signature Victim care unit (Protect), Stakeholder engagement (Protect), tailored products and alerts (Protect). 

The percentage of victims satisfied with the overall service provided by ECD officers 

Cumulative responses 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Percentage of respondents satisfied 68% 70% 71% 71% 72% 72% 72% 71% 72% 
   

Number of respondents satisfied 166 187 209 224 234 293 305 331 369 
   

Number of valid responses 244 269 295 316 326 406 426 463 511 
   

Supporting information – The percentage of victims satisfied with the initial service provided by ECD officers 

Percentage of respondents satisfied 76% 76% 75% 75% 75% 76% 76% 75% 74%    

Number of respondents satisfied 186 205 223 238 247 310 324 348 385    

Number of valid responses 245 270 297 319 329 409 429 466 517    
 

 
Analysis of trends and activity: 
Cumulatively since the surveys inception in 2014 72% (369/511) of victims have stated that they are satisfied with the service that was provided by ECD officers throughout their 
investigation. This is an increase of 1% compared to the cumulative level of satisfaction last quarter.  

51 respondents completed the ECD victim of crime survey in Q1 2017/16.  

It should be noted that the above figures are based upon a headline report provided by the research company. Further analysis on this quarter’s survey will be provided upon receipt of the 
full report.  

 

 

 

 
  

P
age 85



  

Page | 
24 

 

Pursue Update 

Op Broadway 
Operation Broadway is a multiagency partnership led by the City of London Police targeting criminals who are committing investment fraud within the City of 
London. During Quarter 1 13 Op Broadway deployments took place, 1 of which resulted in a disruption. 50 binary option visits were also undertaken.    

 

Asset Recovery 

Stripping criminals of assets gained from illegal activity effectively diminishes benefits obtained from crime. During June 2 confiscation orders were achieved with 
a total benefit figure of £382,649. 1 cash forfeiture order was achieved with a value of £22,380. 

Protect Update 

Stakeholder engagement 
The Fraud Teams and MLIU undertook 13 stakeholder engagement events in June.  

Media 
The ECPC appeared on the BBC Crimewatch Roadshow three times in June and spoke about ticket fraud, holiday fraud and rental fraud. 
 
Social Media 
The ECD’s Twitter accounts are used to spread both Protect and Prevent messaging. Currently Action Fraud, the Fraud Teams, IFED and PIPCU run Twitter 
accounts and have the following number of followers. 

 @actionfrauduk: 36,485 

 @CityPoliceFraud: 2,716 

 @CityPoliceIFED: 2,272 

 @CityPolicePIPCU: 1,878 

Prevent Update 
Stakeholder engagement 
The NFIB undertook 24 stakeholder engagement events with public industry and LEAs in June. 22 of these stakeholder engagements involved a prevent element. 

Prepare Update 

Economic Crime Academy 
The Economic Crime Academy ran 8 courses in June with 127 delegates attending the courses. 2 of the delegates were internal, 31 were police force delegates, 38 
were private sector and 56 were charity sector. 

  

P
age 86



  

Page | 
25 

5. Vulnerable Persons 4P Overview 
 

Area 5 Vulnerable Persons 

4P Plan Lead Supt Isaacs 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to protect vulnerable people within the City and ensure the Force is providing an 
adequate response to improve public safety. 

DEFINITIONS 
 

MEASUREMENT 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                       Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:      Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other areas within  
                                        the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other areas to work on 
                                       desired outcomes. 
                                       Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach used. 

DATA SOURCE 
 

ASSESSMENT Capability CLOSE MONITORING Impact SATISFACTORY 

Monitoring Suicide Attempts within City 

 
Domestic Abuse Crimes and Incidents 
 

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Numbers of 136 Forms 20 20 11          

Trend -            

Number of Referrals 20 20 11          

Trend -            

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Number of Domestic 
Abuse Crimes 

3 6 13          

Trend -            

Number of Domestic 
Abuse Incidents 

11 4 6          

Trend -            

 

Pursue Update Suspect arrested for sexual assault on a 16 year old girl near Millennium Bridge, identified from bank card usage. Bail conditions to protect female and ensuring 

P
age 87



  

Page | 
26 

he has no unsupervised contact with children.  
 
Suspect arrested for a series of voyeurism offences in ladies changing rooms in the City. Has denied offence and is currently on bail with conditions. Excellent 
piece of work between PPU, Crime Squad and Uniform officers.  

Protect Update 

Conviction for sexual touching on a female in a licensed premises. Once sentenced suspect is likely to go on sex offenders register to protect other vulnerable 
persons.  
 
MARAC  held for 2 x high risk victims of domestic abuse and multi agency plans put in to place for their protection.  
 
Scoping project is underway in using the online Child Protection system to identify subject in COL who are sharing indecent images. At present no IPs have been 
geo-located to the City however there are ongoing. 
 
Number of Domestic Abuse cases referred to MARAC 

 
Completion Rates of DASH books against number of Domestic Abuse crimes/incidents 
 

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Number of Referrals 0 0 2          

Trend - -           

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Completion rates 
(%) 

71% 
[10/14] 

70% 
[7/10] 

84% 
[16/19] 

         

Trend -            

Prevent Update Sexual Violence/Consent campaign was due to start 5/6/17 however this has been postponed until July 2017 due to the terrorist incident 3/06. 

Prepare Update 

Updated CSE Protocol drafted and to be circulated with partners for consultation prior to publication. 
 
Number of Child coming to notice (377’s) completed in relation to domestic abuse cases 
 

Month APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

Number of domestic 
related CCN 

1 3 4          

Trend -            

 

  

P
age 88



  

Page | 
27 

 

6. Violent Crime 4P Overview 
 

Area 6 Victim Based Violent Crime 

4P Plan Lead Supt Evans 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force will sufficiently detailed information (intelligence and statistics) to allow it to manage its response to violent crime 
efficiently and effectively.  Victim based violent crime is one of two categories of crime (the other being acquisitive crime) that constitutes the greatest 
volume of crime. 

DEFINITIONS 

 
“Victim-based violent crime” comprises homicide, violence with injury, violence without injury, sexual offences. 
“Systemic increase” is one that is 6 consecutive increases above the mean or 4 consecutive increases above a control level  
 

MEASUREMENT 

PMG will receive data around current levels of victim-based violent crime, trend information and analysis.   
 
GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                 Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged.  
                                        Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
 
Close Monitoring:       Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other                         
                                       areas within the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level facing  
                                       the City. 
 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other areas  
                                        to work on desired outcomes. 
                                        Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach  
                                        used. 

DATA SOURCE PIU (I&I) For Crime Stats 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact REQUIRES ACTION 

P
age 89



  

Page | 
28 

Victim Based Violent Crime Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

2015-16 (Month) 61 67 96 77 66 73 80 78 100 64 75 74 911 

2016-17 (Month) 78 73 78 73 84 73 90 72 117 48 65 70 921 

2017-18 (Month) 76 71 89                   236 

Change (Month) 
-2 -2 11                     

-2.56% -2.74% 14.10%                     

2015-16 (YTD) 61 128 224 301 367 440 520 598 698 762 837 911  911 

2016-17 (YTD) 78 151 229 302 386 459 549 621 738 786 851 921  921 

2017-18 (YTD) 76 147 236                    264 

Change (YTD) 
-2 -4 7                     

-2.56% -2.65% 3.06%                     

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Pursue Update Op Sceptre 14
th

 July HVP LPS / ANPR activations / Op Venice north CoLP area. BTP CoLP and MPS joint working. 

R² = 0.0032 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

A
p

r-
1

5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Number of Victim Based Violent Crime per Month 

P
age 90



  

Page | 
29 

 
Op Wimple BTP & CoLP joint working. 

Protect Update CCTV vehicle funded from LNL 

Prevent Update 

Launch of Street Pastors. 
 
PPU launching week of awareness on the topic of consent linked to the increase in sexual offences. This is now linked with BTP & Colp licensing. 
 
Corp engaging with Parkguard and cleansing for intel submission regarding knife finds on estates or found during street cleaning 

Prepare Update 

12
TH

 September Licensing forum organised. Increasing engagement with licensing group. This event with cover use of force by door staff / CCTV coverage and 
ETP. 
 
Violent Crime Night Time Economy briefing to be reviewed. 

 
  

P
age 91



  

Page | 
30 

7. Policing City Roads 4P Overview 
 

Area 7 Road Policing 

4P Plan Lead Insp Smallwood 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to improve road safety within the City and ensure the Force is providing an adequate 
response to mitigate this threat. 

DEFINITIONS N/A 

MEASUREMENT 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                 Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                        Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:       Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other areas within  
                                        the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other areas to work on 
                                       desired outcomes. 
                                        Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach used. 

DATA SOURCE PIU (I&I) for stats 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact CLOSE MONITORING 

 
Casualties for months of: Casualties for months of: Casualties for months of: 

             

 

April 2017 April 2016 April 2015 

CLASSIFICATION FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL 

PEDESTRIANS     4 4     6 6     7 7 

PEDAL CYCLES   1 7 8   3 10 13   1 19 20 

POWERED 2 
WHEEL     1 1     7 7   1   1 

CAR OR TAXI     5 5   1 5 6     9 9 

P.S.V.       0     1 1     2 2 

GOODS       0     1 1     1 1 

OTHER       0       0       0 

Total Casualties 0 1 17 18 0 4 30 34 0 2 38 40 

PI Collisions    1 16 17   4 30 34   2 33 35 
 

P
age 92



  

Page | 
31 

 

 
Casualties for months of: Casualties for months of: Casualties for months of: 

             

 

May 2017 May 2016 May 2015 

CLASSIFICATION FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL FATAL SER. SLIGHT TOTAL 

PEDESTRIANS   2 13 15   2 6 8   2 9 11 

PEDAL CYCLES   2 12 14     11 11   4 11 15 

POWERED 2 
WHEEL   1 3 4     5 5     7 7 

CAR OR TAXI     6 6     2 2     1 1 

P.S.V.       0       0   2 2 4 

GOODS       0       0       0 

OTHER       0       0       0 

Total Casualties 0 5 34 39 0 2 24 26 0 8 30 38 

PI Collisions    5 31 36   2 21 23 0 8 29 37 

 

 
Note: The figures provided for May 2017 have been revised from those reported last month due to additional reports being collated on the system. At time of report writing the June data 
was not fully available and will be presented to PMG next month. 
 

Pursue Update Awaiting installation of tachograph analysis software by IT.    

 
  

P
age 93



  

Page | 
32 

 

Road Safety and Smoothing Traffic Flow 
2016/17 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

Other operations Phones/Seatbelts 62 130 151 97 96 107 39 95 48 76 31 122 1054 

Speeding in the 20mph zone TOR 104 45 31 10 19 8 23 13 35 48 11 0 347 

  EFPN 19 8 11 7 14 1 10 11 20 31 10 0 142 

  Process 4 7 1 0 0 7 7 4 3 6 3 0 42 

 TOTAL 189 190 194 114 129 123 79 123 106 161 55 122 1585 

Number of vehicles seized from ANPR only 7 11 9 5 11 12 9 15 10 8 7 9 113 

Total number of vehicles seized from ANPR / No 
Ins or No DL or both 

3 9 6 23 36 32 24 32 30 26 26 25 272 

Number of pre planned enforcement and/or 
education operations targeting Large Goods 

Vehicle within City of London 
11 11 11 11 11 15 13 15 14 15 16 14 157 

Number of LGV's stopped 83 116 136 121 70 91 91 105 101 128 86 126 1254 

Number of LGV's stopped with offences 58 74 79 89 49 63 60 69 60 74 59 65 799 

Number of offences 136 189 209 222 117 122 105 165 194 141 104 152 1856 

 
  

P
age 94



  

Page | 
33 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Protect Update 
Layering approach should have been trialled in June, with a number of ops planned with traffic officers and Raven 14 officers targeting both drink and drug 
drive and a CT element.     Has been deferred due to other CT deployments.   

Prevent Update 
Media campaigns – a plan was done for June with regular releases to highlight drink drug drive month but was cancelled due to London Bridge.   
 

Prepare Update Shortage of tachograph officers due to vacancies and abstractions to L&D.     

  

Road Safety and Smoothing Traffic Flow 
2017/18 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

Other operations Phones/Seatbelts 24 13 22 
         

59 

Speeding in the 20mph zone TOR 22 21 11 
         

55 

  EFPN 15 8 4 
         

27 

  Process 31 7 12 
         

50 

 TOTAL 92 49 49 
         

190 

Number of vehicles seized from ANPR only 7 15 11 
         

33 

Total number of vehicles seized from ANPR / No 
Ins or No DL or both 

27 29 27 
         

83 

Number of pre planned enforcement and/or 
education operations targeting Large Goods 

Vehicle within City of London 
10 14 14 

         
38 

Number of LGV's stopped 81 119 153 

         
353 

Number of LGV's stopped with offences 52 86 99 

         
237 

Number of offences 137 222 236 

         
395 

P
age 95



  

Page | 
34 

8. Public Order & Protective Security 4P Overview 
 

Area 8 Public Order & Protective Security 

4P Plan Lead CI Burgess 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with an overview of activity undertaken to mitigate the threat facing the City through public disorder and ensure the Force is 
providing an adequate response to mitigate this threat. 

DEFINITIONS 
 

MEASUREMENT 

GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                 Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                        Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:       Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other areas within  
                                        the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other areas to work on 
                                       desired outcomes. 
                                        Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach used. 

DATA SOURCE UPD/Ops Planning 

ASSESSMENT Capability REQUIRES ACTION Impact SATISFACTORY 

 
Number of pre-planned events within year (A comparison will also be required for events held in 2016/17 and 2015/16). This will be set out in a table for each year with the events 
associated with each month to track the overall demand the Force faces with pre-planned events. 
 
Response to number of public order events within the City as well as response to events outside of the City. A definition will be provided of the public order event using the NICC criteria. 
This will be listing the number of events each month as far as the system can go back, again with a comparison if available of previous years 2015/16 and 2016/17.  
 
Critical incidents attended (table comparing incidents from 2017-18 with two previous years) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 96



  

Page | 
35 

Pre-Planned Event Update 
 

 April May June July Aug Sep Nov Dec Jan Feb March FYTD 

Pre-planned Events 92 110 121          

Events requiring police 
presence 

53 59 64          

Events requiring 5 officers 
or more  

24 27 45          

  
Those that required more than 20 0fficers are listed below: 

 
Date  Officers Event 

4/06/2017 2 INSP, 7 PS, 88 PC  OP Lewes 

5/06/2017 2 INSP, 7 PS, 88 PC OP Lewes 

6/06/2017 2 INSP, 7 PS, 88 PC OP Lewes and Vigil to commemorate London Bridge 

07/06/2017 3 INSP, 7 PS 66 PC OP Lewes 

07/06/2017 3 PS, 18 PC Ceremonial event Trinity House / St Olave’s Church 

08/06/2017 2 INSP, 7 PS, 88 PC OP Lewes 

09/06/2017 3 INSP, 7 PS, 65 PC OP Lewes 

10/06/2017 2 INSP, 9 PS, 68 PC OP Lewes, Business conference at Mansion House 

10/06/2017 4 PS, 21 PC NOCTURNE Cycle event (Days) 

10/06/2017 1 INSP, 6 PS, 29 PC NOCTURNE Cycle event (Nights) 

11/06/2017 4 INSP, 10 PS, 75 PC OP Lewes 

12/06/2017 1 INSP, 5 PS, 37 PC OP Lewes , Multi faith Vigil  

24/06/2017 2 INSP,6 PS, 53 PC Protest March unite against extremism 

 

 
Events 2016-2017 including demonstrations listed below. 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March FYTD 

Pre Planned City events 42 59 90 57 25 59 56 87 50 33 33 55 646 

Pre planned events 
outside City 

5 9 6 2 1 3 3 3 2 3 1 4 42 

 

 
Events 2015 -2016 Including demonstrations listed below 

P
age 97



  

Page | 
36 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March FYTD 

Pre Planned City events 43 41 68 46 15 57 57 72 56 30 43 41 569 

Pre planned events 
outside City 

2 4 3 0 1 4 5 2 0 1 3 2 27 

 
Protest within the City of London  

 
Protest area 2015-2016 2016-2017 

UNION 22 73 

ENVIRO 24 62 

OTHER 17 15 

INTERNATIONAL 11 10 

LEFT WING 7 5 

ANTI WAR 2 6 

FATHERS RIGHTS 0 4 

ANTI AUSTERITY 1 3 

ANIMALS 4 3 

RIGHT WING 3 2 

BREXIT 0 1 

Trump 0 1 

Total 91 185 

 
 
Critical Incidents within the City of London 2016-2017 (data only available for the previous 12 months). 
 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March FYTD 

Critical 
Incidents 

2 1 0 1 0 0 2 2 1 0 0 2 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 98



  

Page | 
37 

Pre-planned for the fourth coming year 2017-2018 
 

Freedom of the City Intelligence Corps 01/04/2017 

London Marathon 23/04/2017 

Centenary of the Order of British Empire 23/05/2017 

State Visit 07/06/2017 

Group Meeting Finance Minister at Mansion H 09/06/2017 

Nocturne 10/06/2017 

Falkland Islands GAR 13/06/2017 

Operation Mass 20/06/2017 

Srebrenica Memorial event 11/07/2017 

City 5K 13/7/2017 

Ride along 28-30/07/2017 

World Athletics Marathon 06/08/2017 

State Banquet TBC 

Operation Mass 12/09/2017 

Lord Mayors Show 11/11/2017 

Remembrance Sunday 12/11/2017 

Lord Mayors Banquet 13/11/2017 

US Thanks Giving 23/11/2017 

Operation Mass 11/12/2017 

Christmas Campaign 17/12/2017 

New Years Eve 31/01/2017 
 

 
 
  

P
age 99



  

Page | 
38 

Pursue Update No issues raised 

Protect Update 

The Strategic threat and risk assessment has been completed and was reviewed at the STRA meeting on 18
th

 April. From that there may be 
recommendations. 
 
Social Media – Numerous messages have been sent out during the month. Below is an example of Servator deployments. 
#ProjectServator working in partnership @MPSTowerHam @TowerOfLondon Together we've got it covered #WeStandTogether 
#ProjectServator deployments @BarbicanCentre working with @ParkguardLtd #WeStandTogether 
#ProjectServator deployments across the City with @CityPoliceDogs We use a range of different security measures #WeStandTogether 

Prevent Update 

The Regional Public Order working and strategic groups have met. The force is part of the Pan London Public Order CADRE system and officers have been 
allocated weeks.   The Benbow arrangement it is awaiting signature by Commander ops.   
 
Communications – Corp Comms sent out messages via different platforms regarding the closure of the Bank Junction from the 22.5.17 to prevent/publicise 
the issue. Police supported the Corporation during the first week. 
 

Prepare Update 
Ongoing recruitment for Public Order officers across the force. There are sufficient Inspectors to meet demand. The current numbers of Sergeants (10) 
needs to increase to 12. Constables (46) needs to increase to 55 to meet our demand. 

 
  

P
age 100



  

Page | 
39 

9. Acquisitive Crime 4P Overview 
 

Area 9 Acquisitive Crime 

4P Plan Lead DCI Hayman 

AIM/RATIONALE 
The aim is to provide the Force with sufficiently detailed information (intelligence and statistics) to allow it to manage its response to acquisitive crime 
efficiently and effectively.  Victim based acquisitive crime represents the Force’s largest volume crime area.   

DEFINITIONS 
“Victim-based acquisitive crime” comprises robbery, vehicle crime, theft, theft from person, burglary, shoplifting and cycle theft. 
“Systemic increase” is one that is 6 consecutive increases above the mean or 4 consecutive increases above a control level  

MEASUREMENT 

Assessment is based on current levels of victim-based acquisitive crime, trend information and analysis.   
 
GUIDE:  
Satisfactory:                 Capability: The Force has sufficient resources to implement the 4P plan as envisaged  
                                        Impact: There is evidence the tactics used are having the desired impact on the threat level facing the City. 
Close Monitoring:       Capability: The Force has a slight shortage in resources or capability to implement 4P Plan but this is being filled from other             
                                       areas within the Force. 
                                       Impact: There is little or no evidence that the tactics used by the Force are having the desired impact on the threat level  
                                       facing the City. 
Requires Action:         Capability: The Force does not have the capability to implement the 4P plan and cannot transfer resources in from other  
                                        areas to work on desired outcomes. 
                                        Impact: The Force tactics are having no impact on the threat level facing the City and action is required to change approach  
                                        used.  

DATA SOURCE PIU (I&I) for crime stats 

ASSESSMENT Capability SATISFACTORY Impact CLOSE MONITORING 

Acquisitive Crime Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD 

2015-16 (Month) 285 284 263 296 247 263 261 272 229 215 245 251 3111 

2016-17 (Month) 276 257 286 290 316 318 279 312 290 241 298 382 3545 

2017-18 (Month) 283 323 288                    

Change (Month) 
7 66 2                     

2.54% 25.68% 0.70%                     

2015-16 (YTD) 285 569 854 1128 1375 1638 1899 2171 2400 2615 2860 3111 3111 

2016-17 (YTD) 276 533 819 1109 1425 1743 2022 2334 2624 2865 3163 3545 3545 

2017-18 (YTD) 283 606 894                     

Change (YTD) 
7 73 75                     

2.54% 13.70% 9.16%                     

 
 

P
age 101



  

Page | 
40 

 
 

Pursue Update 

Running total Op Steal stats  
Total deployments: 62 
Arrests: 33  
Offences detected:62  
Stop and search: 72 
Intel reports: 132 
Mental Health detentions: 2 
377 reports: 13 
Positive ID: 23 
CBO: 2 
Imprisonment handed down: 2 year 0 months 2 weeks  
  
An individual has been sentenced to 2 years and nine months. He has been convicted of three commercial burglaries and has asked for a further three City 
commercial burglaries to be taken into consideration along with three met reports that we facilitated and conducted the investigation for. 
 
Worked with MPS and got a principal suspect for fruit machine breaks remanded. Although he hasn’t been charged with any City offences yet, through lack of 
evidence, the 19 week sentence should help with crime reduction. DA on two City jobs has now been received and will be progressed 

Protect Update 

Crime Squad and CDU deployed on proactive deployments. Intelligence submitted and offenders deterred 
 
Corp Comms messaging support continues:- 
Media releases 

R² = 0.2176 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

A
p

r-
1

5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Acquisitive Crime Per Month 

P
age 102



  

Page | 
41 

Man charged following betting shop robbery - 29 Jun 2017A 37-year-old man from Islington has been charged in connection with a robbery at a betting shop in 
Moorgate.  
Man jailed for attempted robbery - 13 Jun 2017  suspect pursued his victim across London and tried to rob him in the City. 

Prevent Update 

City is showing some increase in robberies. However the context illustrates that some op Attrition offences where a slight amount of force is being used will be 
crimed as robbery. 
 
Two robbery offenders convicted at Court in last month. 
 
Corporation have requested POCA funding to assist with some Crime Prevention material. 
 
Crime Squad working closely with MPS crime squad from Southwark, focussing on some pick pockets. 

Prepare Update 

Op Attrition – liaison with Op Attrition management on the withdrawal of the current attachment.  Ongoing information sharing agreed and SPOCs identified in 
CID and MCT to ensure we remain involved and available to offer support when needed. Op Vocare is now the new weekly dial in. 
 
Meeting by A/DCI Chapman and A/DI Medlycott with Corporation on assistance to the main acquisitive crime types arranged for 14

th
 July. 

 

  

P
age 103



  

Page | 
42 

10. Victim Satisfaction Overview 
 

Area 10 Levels of satisfaction of victims of crime with the service provided by the city of London police.  

OWNER UPD 

AIM/RATIONALE 

The aim of this measure is to provide the Force will sufficiently detailed information to manage the quality of its service provision to the victims of crime. Although 
victim satisfaction surveys are a statutory requirement, they provide an essential indicator of the level of professionalism the Force portrays and provides. The 
Force includes victims of acquisitive crime, which is not required by the Home Office, as without those victims, the sample size for the City of London would not be 
statistically valid.  

DEFINITIONS “Victim of crime” are victims of violent crime (except sexual offences), vehicle crime,  acquisitive crime and criminal damage 

MEASUREMENT 

PMG will receive quarterly reports of the results of survey results with comparative and trend information.  Quarterly results will be broken down to report 
satisfaction with regard to ease of contact; actions taken; follow up; treatment; and whole experience. Whilst PMG can direct action in relation to any of those 
categories, the principal measure will be the results for whole experience.  
 
GUIDE:   SATISFACTORY: 85% - 100%  
                CLOSE MONITORING: 80% - 84% 
                REQUIRES ACTION: Less than 80% or reducing trend  

DATA SOURCE PIU (I&I) 

ASSESSMENT AWAITING QUARTER 1 RESULTS 

At the time of report writing the first quarter results were not yet available.  
 

  

P
age 104



  

Page | 
43 

11. Customer Satisfaction Survey 
 

Area 11 The percentage of people surveyed who believe the police in the City of London are doing a good or excellent job 

OWNER BSD 

AIM/RATIONALE 
This measure assesses the public’s perception of the Force, based on people who probably have not been a victim of crime but are part of the City of London 
community, be it in the capacity of resident, worker, or business.  It will use a different survey from the Street Survey. 

DEFINITIONS NA 

MEASUREMENT 

The measure will be assessed by the annual customer survey conducted for the customer workstream of City Futures which assesses a range of service outcomes, 
from feeling of safety during the day and after dark to how well the public feel the Force is performing. 
 
GUIDE:   SATISFACTORY: 85% - 100%  
                CLOSE MONITORING: 80% - 84% 
                REQUIRES ACTION: Less than 80% or reducing trend  

DATA SOURCE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT/CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS 

ASSESSMENT NO INFORMATION 

This measure will report after the survey has taken place which is currently scheduled for October/November 2017 and will report annually on the results of this survey.  
 
Strategic Development will liaise with Corporate Communications post the SMB decision on the Force survey strategy to design an appropriate survey for 2017/18. 

 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 106



Document is Restricted

Page 107

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding References
	4a Briefing Note - OR 9 - CoLP Policy Oversight Annual Update 2016-2017
	4b Briefing Note - OR 10, OR 12 - Performance Against Measures
	5 Internal Audit Update Report
	Appendix 1 - Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2016-17 for 26th September 2017
	Appendix 2 - Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2017-18 for 26th September 2017 meeting

	6 HMICFRS Inspection Update
	Pol_61-17_HMIC_Update_Report_Appendix_A

	7 1st Quarter Performance against measures set out in the Policing Plan 2017-20
	11 Non-Public Minutes

